
CITY OF

C (7 7 n t t/

Est. 1875

Winters City Council Meeting

Public Safety Facility Fire Bay - 700 Main Street,
and Teleconference via ZOOM

To Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/l/86242831370

Or Dial In By Phone: 1-669-900-6833
Meeting ID: 862 4283 1370

Tuesday, June 2, 2020
6:30 p.m.
AGENDA

Members of the City Council

Wade Cowan, Mayor
Bill Biasi, Mayor Pro-Tempore
Harold Anderson John W Donlevy. Jr.. City Manager
Jesse Loren Ethan Walsh, City Attorney
Piene Neu Tracy Jensen, City Clerk

PLEASE NOTE - The numerical order of items on this agenda is for convenience of
reference. Items may be taken out of order upon request of the Mayor or
Councilmembers. Public comments time may be limited and speakers will be asked to
state their name.

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Agenda

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENTS

At this time, any member of the public may address the City Council on matters, which
are n^ listed on this agenda. Citizens should reserve their comments for matter listed
on this agenda at the time the item is considered by the Council. An exception is made



Winters City Council Agenda
Regular Meeting of June 2, 2020 Page - 2 -

for members of the public for whom It would create a hardship to stay until their item is
heard. Those individuals may address the item after the public has spoken on issues
that are not listed on the agenda. Presentations may be limited to accommodate all
speakers within the time available. Public comments may also be continued to later in
the meeting should the time allotted for public comment expire.

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed under the consent calendar are considered routine and non-

controversial, require no discussion and are expected to have unanimous Council
support and may be enacted by the City Council in one motion in the form listed below.
There will be no separate discussion of these items. However, before the City Council
votes on the motion to adopt, members of the City Council, staff, or the public may
request that specific items be removed from the Consent Calendar for separate
discussion and action. Items(s) removed will be discussed later in the meeting as time
permits.

A. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City Council Held on
Tuesday, May 19, 2020 (pp. 4-13)

B. Resolution 2020-27, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Winters
Establishing an Appropriation Limit Pursuant to Article XIIIB of the
California Constitution for the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 (pp. 14-22)

PRESENTATIONS: None

DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Public Hearing and Adoption of Resolution 2020-26, a Resolution of the
City Council of the City of Winters Approving the Engineer's Report and
Ordering the Levy and Collection of Assessments within the City of
Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District, Fiscal Year
2020/2021 (pp. 23-92)

2. Budget Workshop (pp. 93-94)
3. Acceptance of Certificate of Sufficiency for the Initiative Petition Amending

the City of Winters General Plan to Establish an Urban Growth Boundary
and Request for Further Direction from City Council Pursuant to Elections
Code 9215 (pp. 95-110)

CITY MANAGER REPORT

INFORMATION ONLY

ADJOURNMENT

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda for the June 2, 2020 regular
meeting of the Winters City Council was posted on the City of Winters website at

City of Winters



Winters City Council Agenda
Regular Meeting of June 2, 2020 Page - 3 -

www.citvofwinters.orq and Councilmembers were notified via e-mail of its' availability. A
copy of the foregoing agenda was also posted on the outside public bulletin board at
City Hall, 318 First Street on May 28, 2020, and made available to the public during
normal business hours.

j:
Tracy S. Jen^n, CityK^lerk

Questions about this agenda - Please call the City Clerk's Office (530) 794-6702.
Agendas and staff reports are available on the city web page at
www, citvofwinters. ora/administrative/admin council, htm

General Notes: Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. To arrange
aid or services to modify or accommodate persons with disability to participate in a
public meeting, contact the City Clerk.

Staff recommendations are guidelines to the City Council. On any item, the Council
may take action, which varies from that recommended by staff.

The city does not transcribe its proceedings. Anyone who desires a verbatim record of
this meeting should arrange for attendance by a court reporter or for other acceptable
means of recordation. Such arrangements will be at the sole expense of the individual
requesting the recordation.

How to obtain City Council Agendas and Agenda Packets:

View on the internet: www, citvofwinters. ora/administrative/admin council, htm

Any attachments to the agenda that are not available online may be viewed at the City
Clerk's Office or locations where the hard copy packet is available.

Email Subscription: You may contact the City Clerk's Office to be placed on the list. An
agenda summary is printed in the Winters Express newspaper.

City Council agenda packets are available for review or copying at the following
locations:

City Hall - Finance Office - 318 First Street

City Council meetings are streamed and can be viewed live at
http://www. citvofwinters. org/live-citv-council-meetinas/. A recording of any streamed
City Council meeting can be viewed at a later date at httD://www.citvofwinters.orp/citv-
council-meetina-recordinas/.

City of Winters



CITY OF

r/ 7 // f ft

Esc. 1875

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City Council Held via
Teleconference (ZOOM) on May 19, 2020

Mayor Wade Cowan called the meeting to order at 6;30 p.m.

Present:

Absent:

Staff:

Council Members Harold Anderson, Jesse Loren, Pierre Neu, Mayor Pro
Tem Biasi, Mayor Wade Cowan
None

City Manager John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Attorney Ethan Walsh. Police
Chief John Miller, Fire Chief Brad Lopez, Environmental Services
Manager Carol Scianna, Director of Financial Management Shelly Gunby,
Public Works Superintendent Eric Lucero, Building Official Gene
Ashdown, City Clerk Tracy Jensen.

Council Member Loren led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of Agenda: Mayor Cowan said this meeting was being conducted on Zoom,
which is allowed under the Governor's order. All votes will be roll call votes. Time will
be provided for any members of the public to make comments for each agenda item. If
you wish to make a comment, please use the "raise your hand" feature and you will be
given the opportunity to speak.

City Manager Donlevy said there were no changes to the agenda. Motion by Council
Member Loren, second by Council Member Neu to approve the agenda with no
changes. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Members Anderson, Loren, Neu, Mayor Pro Tem Biasi. Mayor
Cowan

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: Verbal updates were provided by Council.



Minutes of the Regular Meeting ofthe Winters City
Council Held via Teleconference on May 19. 2020

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Winters Resident Jason Trojanowski inquired what the City of
Winters is doing regarding the State of Emergency that he claimed was valid for 60
days and expired on May 6. City Manager Donlevy said the City of Winters falls under
the jurisdiction of Yolo County and the current order expires on May 31.

CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City Council Held on
Tuesday, May 5, 2020

B. Resolution 2020-18, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Winters, Initiating Proceedings for the Annual Levy and Collection of
Assessments for the City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Fiscal
Year 2020/2021

C. Resolution 2020-19, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Winters
Preliminarily Approving the Engineer's Annual Levy Report, and Declaring
its Intention to Levy and Collect Annual Assessments and Providing
Notice of Hearings Thereof for the City of Winters City-Wde Maintenance
Assessment District, Fiscal Year 2020/2021

D. Approval of Joint Use Agreement between the City of Winters and the
Wnters Parent Nursery School (WPNS)

E. Resolution 2020-23, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Wnters
to Accept a Grant Deed for a Public Utility Easement Related to the
Wnters Highlands (Stone's Throw) Phase 2 Project; and Resolution 2020-
24, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Wnters to Approve the
Final Map #4507 for Wnters Highlands (Stone's Throw) Phase 2
Subdivision

F. Irrevocable Offer of Dedication of Right of Way and Public Utility
Easement for the Wnters Highlands (Stone's Throw) Phase 1 Subdivision

City Manager Donlevy gave an overview and verified Council Member Neu may
participate in the vote regarding Item D as his property exceeds the 500-foot boundary.
Motion by Council Member Loren, second by Council Member Neu to approve the
Consent Calendar. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Members Anderson, Loren, Neu, Mayor Pro Tem Biasi, Mayor
Cowan

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Public Hearing to Receive Input from Specific Property Owners Regarding
Implementation of Weed Abatement for 2020

City of Winters



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City
Council Held via Teleconference on May 19. 2020

City Manager Donlevy gave an overview. Mayor Cowan opened the public hearing at
6:59 p.m. and referenced a letter that had been sent to the City Council signed by
residents on Dry Creek Lane following a recent fire. City Manager Donlevy met with
residents from Dry Creek who requested the City consider moving weed abatement
inspection from twice a year to three times a year. City Manager Donlevy said staff will
take their request into consideration and respond in the next couple of weeks, adding
the fire remains under investigation.

Maria Weston, 412 Dry Creek Ln., said it was a frightening situation and was thankful to
the Winters Fire and Police Departments for their good work in protecting their street
and the entire city. When grasses get too high and present a danger, it's the
responsibility of the owner of property to abate when it becomes dangerous. When
residents call the City about dangerous property, the City should take action to abate it
or cause it to be abated in a timely manner.

Linda Hirst, 414 Dry Creek Lane, said she is impressed by all the City is handling and
said thank you. When there is a safety threat, she would like to get a more rapid
response than what she's seen. It's late to be mowing for fire risk.

Several residents of Dry Creek Lane submitted a letter proposing the City assess
adjacent property for fire risk and modify the weed abatement mowing schedule to
ensure that the fire risk is removed as soon as possible. Weed abatement needs to
happen on a fixed schedule and whenever current conditions present a fire hazard to
the community. The letter also proposed the establishment of a reporting system so
residents can contact the City to warn them of dangerous conditions, upon which the
City is required to abate or arrange for the abatement of said conditions. The increased
risk management would serve many parties, including unnecessary deployment of the
Fire Department, protect residents from liability for the negligent damage caused by
others, and help keep our residents lives and property safer from completely
preventable fires.

Council Member Loren referenced climate change and climate change adaption and
said the fire season is no longer predictable and doesn't follow a pattern. She
suggested leading the way by adding a third time period for weed abatement and
provide more clarity to the public about what they can do to abate property adjacent to
their own property. City Manager Donlevy said weed abatement is not a perfect
science, adding staff will get the wheels in motion for an evaluation of the weed
abatement calendar and will bring back to Council for review at a later date.

Mayor Cowan closed the public hearing at 7:09.

Fire Chief Lopez acknowledged and understood the residents' concerns regarding the
May 16^^ fire, which was fast moving and posed an immediate threat to the homes in the
area. The Fire Department took quick action to subdue the fire and are continuing to
follow up on an investigation.

City of Winters



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City
Council Held via Teleconference on May 19. 2020

2. Resolution 2020-22, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Winters
Authorizing the Establishment of an OPEB Trust to be Administered by
Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) and U.S. Bank

Director of Financial Management Shelly Gunby gave an overview. Council Member
Neu asked if staff was putting more money away or putting money in a different place.
Ms. Gunby said while the City continues to make their required payments through the
OPEB trust, funds will also be placed in the PARS 115 Trust in order to diversify the
City's investments. If approved, funding into the PARS 115 Trust will begin in 2021.
Mayor Pro Tem Biasi asked if PARS selects the investment funds and Ms. Gunby said a
menu of investments is provided and staff will select how the funds are to be invested.

Motion by Council Member Neu, second by Mayor Pro Tem Biasi to approve Resolution
2020-22, authorizing the establishment of an OPEB Trust to be Administered by Public
Agency Retirement Services (PARS) and U.S. Bank. Motion approved with the
following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Members Anderson, Loren, Neu, Mayor Pro Tem Biasi, Mayor
Cowan

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

3. Authorization to Purchase New Radar Trailer with Digital Signage, Radar
Detection, Traffic Counting, ALPR Technology and Speed Sensors

Police Chief Miller gave an overview, confirming the new radar trailer will be a
multipurpose piece of equipment that will include an enhanced message board that can
be updated remotely, hardware/software, and ALPR technology. Chief Miller confirmed
an ALPR policy, required as per SB34, is not required to be adopted prior to purchasing
the trailer, but will be developed and brought forward to a regularly scheduled public
meeting to provide the public with an opportunity for public comment. 230 out of 391
agencies in California use ALPR technology, with 36 departments planning to
implement soon (not including Winters.) Chief Miller reviewed how the ALPR system
works, which doesn't identify the driver license or immigration status but monitors traffic
for violations. He added this technology would be an efficient use of manpower and the
information obtained can only by shared with other public agencies, and not with private
agencies or immigration. The City will own the closed data and recordings, with Vigilant
storing the data, and can only be shared with other agencies if an MOU agreeing to do
so is in place. Information will be destroyed in one year from the date taken unless it is
being used on a case. Chief Miller reviewed the two quotes received, identified where
the funds would be coming from, confirmed the annual maintenance fee of $2550,
which has been built into the 2021/2022 operating budget. The digital signage can also
be used for community messages, special event/alternate parking, emergency road
closures, and public safety types of events. The information received is uploaded to

City of Winters



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City
Council Held via Teleconference on May 19. 2020

Vigilant and stored on servers on behalf of the Winters Police Department and can't be
shared with other agencies unless we agree via MOU. Vigilant also cannot sale or
provide information to private entities. If the City of Winters data is shared with another
agency as per the MOU on file, that agency cannot share the data with any other
agency as per SB54. Mayor Cowan then opened the floor for public comments.

Jason Trojanowski voiced his concerns about using anti-theft vehicle funds being used
for a trailer, license plates being run without reasonable cause, and suggested installing
cameras on street lights to better position the cameras. Chief Miller said as per Cal
Trans, cameras can't be installed on light poles on a State highway.

Kate Laddish, 400 Morgan, thanked staff for changing this purchase to a discussion
item to facilitate input in accordance with SB34. Ms. Laddish expressed her concern
about the City of Winters adopting a form of warrantless mass surveillance that can be
abused. The technology we adopt is only as good and as trustworthy as the people
using and storing the date gathered. Vigilant Solution, the company with which Winters
hopes to partner, has a history of selling data to customers that are far outside the
scope of what the local jurisdictions planned. While the safeguards enacted in SB54
should help with this, Ms. Laddish remains concerned that Winters will be collecting
information, including whole-car photos of every car and sending it to a third-party
vendor for storage and use. SB54 will require Winters PD to enter into a written
agreement with any individual outside agencies with which I share the information and
Ms. Laddish requested Council to direct staff to include guidelines for when, how, and
how widely that information will be shared, and to include guidelines for terminating
sharing agreements when specific investigations end. A State auditor's report from
February 2020 showed that problems remain with ALPRs, even with SB34 and SB54 in
place. Ms. Laddish requested Council to direct staff to draft a usage and privacy policy
and make that policy publicly available before Council votes, helping to ensure that we
uphold our community values and reduce the risk of future abuse of the data, and asked
Council to wait to vote on this item until the June 2 City Council meeting.

Sandra Aamodt, 30100 Positas Road, expressed her concerns about the planned
purchase of an automated license plate reader for Winters. The information collected
can be dangerous if its use is not appropriately limited. The more widely the information
is disseminated and the longer it is stored, the more likely it is to be abused. State law
provides a reasonable set of safeguards against such abuses, but a recent audit found
that violations of these laws are common in practice. In order to prevent these types of
problems developing in Winters, Ms. Aamodt requested that Council direct staff to make
the proposed privacy policy available for public discussion before the ALPR is
purchased. This policy should specify how long the information will be retained before
being destroyed and how the department will decide when to share its database with
other agencies.

Shep Harper, 431 Russell, said he understands the need to replace an aging radar
trailer and appreciates having them on his street to remind others to slow down, as well
as himself. He understands that the replacement will include an Automatic License

City of Winters



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City
Council Held via Teleconference on May 19 2020

Plate Reader (ALPR) and he does not support them. He considers them warrantless
mass surveillance devices and there are already provisions in California law guidelines
for how these devices can be used. He requested if Council decides to augment a
Radar Trailer with an ALPR, provisions will include strong controls that meet SB34 and
SB 54 requirements.

Bonnie Dixon, 422 Russell St., expressed her concern about the consideration of
acquiring an ALPR. This type of mass surveillance technology should not be adopted
without first ensuring that the privacy of the public is protected in the way that the
information collected by the device will be store and used. It is critical that the City
Council not approve the acquisition of an ALPR until after a usage and privacy policy
has been put in place that satisfies the Council and residents of Winters and is in full
compliance with all relevant state laws. The policy should ensure that there will be no
unnecessary sharing or long-term storage of ALPR data.

Jill Shirley, 200 Wolfskill, said ALPRs are a form of warrantless mass surveillance that
raises serious concerns about privacy and security. California law provides several
safeguards against the misuse of information from ALPRs that include sharing the
resulting data to any person or agency outside of law enforcement, anyone who
accesses the data must be trained and monitored to prevent unauthorized use, and a
usage and privacy policy must be publicly available. In addition, SB54 prohibits the
sharing of this information with immigration enforcement. Ms. Shirley strongly opposes
the use of warrantless mass surveillance, including ALPRs, and said she was very
concerned about adding a new sun/eillance technology to Winters. She wants to
ensure that there are adequate usage and privacy policies in place before any
surveillance technology is adopted and recommended that a City of Winters ALPR
Usage and Privacy Policy be made available for public discussion before any ALPR
purchase is approved to ensure that the policy prohibits unnecessary sharing and long-
term storage of the information collected, in compliance with State law.

Denise Cotrell, and All Vallecillo, 210 Main Street, thanked Chief Miller for his report
regarding the ALPR technology. On behalf of the Hispanic Advisory Committee, there
is a lot of concern within the Hispanic community about the information gathered. If the
information is shared so easily on the cloud and stored by a third party, it can get out of
our control. The radar trailer is important and an upgrade with newer technology will be
an asset to the community. But before implementing this tool, Ms. Cotrell requested
that Council direct staff to develop a policy, have a discussion about how the policy will
work, and to include the Latino community in the future by posting bilingual notices. Ms.
Cotrell also thanked Council and staff for repairing the sidewalk on Main Street.

Rodney Orosco, Winters Express, said there are boilerplate policies available and said
the ALPR technology policy can be updated specific to Winters Police Department once
the system is accepted.

Council Member Loren has been a liaison for the Hispanic Advisory Committee (HAC)
for 12 years and said its members were not aware that this item was available for public

City of Winters



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City
Council Held via Teleconference on May 19. 2020

comment. The HAC wants to improve interaction with the City and the Winters Express
and requested the contents of future agenda packets be translated into Spanish.
Council Member Loren said she would like to consider some of the language, including
the guidelines for sharing agreements and said she is comfortable approving the trailer,
but is not comfortable with the ALPR without more input on the policy portion.

Mayor Pro Tern Biasi said the existing trailer needs to be replaced and legal counsel
can provide direction. Using a new system could assist the police department with
homicide investigations, issue Amber Alerts, and assist in arson investigations as long
as the data is used properly. Chief Miller confirmed only the license plate on the front or
back of the car, and not the entire car is captured. This system is used in neighboring
communities and it makes sense for Winters to use the technology for the right reasons.

Council Member Neu agreed that surrounding cities use this technology but he is
concerned about the policy. It will take awhile to build the trailer and install the
equipment, and before it can be used, a policy can be written and approved by Council
before being used. He doesn't want the ALPR to be used prior to having a policy in
place.

Council Member Anderson said the system should be used for law enforcement
purposes and not looking fonward in the technology era puts us at a disadvantage.
Cooperation with neighboring agencies is going to benefit the entire region.

Mayor Cowan said he Is in favor of the trailer with the ALPR. It will be a good tool for
the Police Department. He said he understands SB34 and SB54; there are a lot of laws
and regulations that help control data usage and agreed that a good, sound policy is put
into place. Mayor Cowan fully supports the purchase of the new trailer and ALPR
system with the caveat that we establish a policy for public input and policy approval
prior to usage. This is an important tool for the Police Department and can be
extremely helpful. The only question that remained was how the MOUs will be worked
out between Police Departments and asked if they would be used just for specific
cases. Chief Miller said the initial MOU is not based on a time period and both parties
must agree to continue. The MOU can be terminated, can be updated with changes
specific to the agency.

City Manager Donlevy said Chief Miller will put together the overall policy in compliance
with SB34 and SB54, who has been very explicit that no information will be shared with
ICE. Chief Miller said he will be utilizing a model policy by Lexipol that specifically
addresses SB34 and SB54.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Biasi, second by Council Member Loren to approve the
purchase of the RADAR trailer with ALRP with the caveat that the policy be brought
back to Council for review prior to the trailer being put into use. Council Member Loren
added "prior to implementing trailer." City Manager Donlevy confirmed the policy would
be written by Chief Miller and brought back to Council for approval at the June 2"^ City
Council meeting. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

City of Winters

10



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City
Council Held via Teleconference on May 19. 2020

AYES: Council Members Anderson, Loren, Neu, Mayor Pro Tern BiasI, Mayor
Cowan

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

4. SB1 2019-2020 Street Rehab Project Change Order for Striping

Public Works Superintendent Eric Lucero gave an overview and confirmed the striping
was left off of the bid to avoid having to go back out to bid. The lowest bid left us
approximately $47K under budget, and the lowest bid for the striping came in at $38K.
The project, which should be completed next week, will include widened bike paths
along Main Street.

Motion by Council Member Neu, second by Council Member Loren to allow the City
Manager to execute a change order for striping to the existing contract with Vintage
Paving for the SB1 2019-2020 Street Rehab Project. Motion carried with the following
roll call vote:

AYES: Council Members Anderson, Loren, Neu, Mayor Pro Tern Biasi, Mayor
Cowan

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

5. Budget Overview

City Manager Donlevy said staff was bringing forth information regarding the impact of
salary reductions and Director of Financial Management Shelly Gunby would give
Council and the community an idea of the reductions that are being proposed and how
the City plans to pay for some things. Ms. Gunby said all employee groups have been
met with at least once, some twice, and although no agreements are in place, staff
anticipates a 5% pay cut moving forward. Ms. Gunby then shared Slide 1 reflecting the
total contributed by Department Heads back into the General Fund over a ten-year
period, exceeding $500K. Slide 2 reflects the impact of the proposed pay cut for each
employee.

Regarding the $250,000 in funds toward a $1 million litigation reserve to address
potential challenges to land use initiatives, City Attorney Walsh said he was hopeful that
litigation doesn't come to pass, but the City needs to be prepared to defend any
challenges that might come our way. Mayor Pro Tem Biasi said an issue was brought
up that the City was not being transparent about what the money was to be used for
and he thanked City Attorney Walsh for explaining why staff couldn't comment on those
funds. City Attorney Walsh said in general. Council and staff members have been wary

City of V\^nters

n



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City
Council Held via Teleconference on May 19. 2020

of how they speak about the initiative as they don't want to be put in a position to
advocate one way or another. Also, staff was concerned about potentially
compromising our position by providing information about strategy and our legal
position. This is the reason staff didn't want to elaborate without legal counsel at the
May 5^^ City Council meeting and appreciates staff and Council for being careful on
these issues and not putting the City in a more defensive position.

Council Member Neu asked if it was common for referendums or ballot measures to
have issues or involve lawsuits. City Attorney Walsh said they do happen occasionally,
though he doesn't have any statistics. There are a number of factors to consider and
we can't predict litigation, but there is always a possibility and we have an obligation to
defend it If it does come,

Mayor Pro Tem Biasi referenced the table showing the amounts that Department Heads
donated back to the City's general fund was impressive. Over Vz million dollars could
have easily been taken but the chose to give it back to the general fund. He wanted to
acknowledge them and thanked Shelly for putting this information together. Council
Member Loren reiterated Mayor Pro Tem Biasi's comments - y2 million dollars is
astounding. These numbers prove the sacrifice that was made by City administrators
and it's a reminder of what we're made of.

Council Member Neu referenced the chart showing cuts would be at 7.5% and asked
how much that would save the City. Ms. Gunby said it would save the general fund
almost $275K. City Manager Donlevy confirmed there will be more specific budget
information brought back to Council on June 2 and will come back to Council on June
16 for adoption, with input provided by Council in the meantime.

Council Member Loren asked if there was any word from the State or Feds on money
coming for cities. City Manager Donlevy said the Governor released the budget last
week and has carried forward a $55 billion-dollar deficit from where they were in
January, and the State will receive $14 billion worth of aid from the Feds. We may get a
little bit of money, but it will be eaten up pretty quickly. City Manager Donlevy confirmed
a Special Executive Session City Council meeting would be scheduled to discuss labor
negotiations.

CITY MANAGER REPORT: Regarding PSPS (Public Safety Power Shutoffs), PG&E
has installed switches so the City is not going to see they type of shuts downs we had
last year, including the downtown. Regarding COVID-19, the Board of Supervisors
kicked into next week the possible opening of restaurants and will provide guidance
documents to staff. Sacramento and Solano Counties are opening restaurants and
retail on Thursday and Yolo County remains behind the curve. From a City Hall
standpoint, we have many residents who pay their utility bill with cash and reopening of
City Hall is very important. Staff is working on a strategy to open the doors on June 1^^
including putting safeguards and policies in place. Staff will be sending a survey to

City of Winters

12



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City
Council Held via Teleconference on May 19. 2020

Council regarding an Executive Session to discuss labor negotiations via Zoom. Mayor
Cowan added there is a meeting scheduled with downtown business owners on
Thursday morning at 11 to discuss and develop a way to reopen by providing more
flexibility for outside dining with no additional licensing. City Manager Donlevy said the
downtown business owners have a good team and will work with staff to look at an
overall strategy to open up responsibly and safely. If you like 4'^ Fridays, get ready!

INFORMATION ONLY: None

ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Cowan adjourned the meeting at 9:12 p.m.

Wade Cowan, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Tracy S. Jensen, City Clerk

City of Winters

13



CITY OF

V er o ^ f e/

Est. 1875

TO:

DATE:

THROUGH:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Councilmemb^s

June 2, 2020

John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manager*

Shelly A. Gunby, Director of Financial Management

Appropriation Limit for Fiscal Year 2020-2021

RECOMMENDATION:

City Council approve Resolution 2020-27, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Winters Establishing an Appropriation Limit Pursuant to Article XIIIB of the California
Constitution for Fiscal Year 2020-2021.

BACKGROUND:

In 1978, Proposition 13 was enacted, and as a follow up to Proposition 13, the voters of California
amended the California Constitution in 1979 to limit the growth of governmental spending by
passing Proposition 4- Proposition 4 crated Article XIIIB of the California Constitution that

provides a formula for calculating spending limits of governments. Proposition 4 is commonly
referred to as the Appropriation or Gann Limit.

The Appropriation Limit creates a restriction on the amount of government revenue which may be
appropriated in any fiscal year. The Appropriation Limit is based on actual appropriations during
the base year and increases each year using specified growth factors. The Appropriation Limit
applies to only those revenues defined "proceeds of taxes". Proceeds of taxes generally refer to
revenues in the General Fund, and some Special Revenue Funds.

Proceeds of taxes include, but are not limited to:

• All taxes levied by or for a Public Agency;

• Any revenue from regulatory licenses, user charges and user fees or charges to the

extent that the proceeds exceed the cost of providing the regulation, product or service;
• The following are NOT considered from regulatory licenses, user charges and

user fees or charges for the purposes of the Appropriation Limit.

14



•  Rents, Concessions, entrance fees, franchise fees
•  Fine, forfeitures and penalties
•  Assessments on real property or person for special benefit conferred.

•  State Subventions for general purposes; and
1. State subventions include:

• VLF in Lieu Fees that are not designated as per use; and
• Homeowners Property Tax Relief

2. State moneys provide to local governments with restricted uses excluded from
the local governments Appropriation Limit such as:
• Gas Tax (HUTA)

• Any interest earned from the investment of the proceeds of taxes
• Certain items are excluded from the Appropriations Limit such as;

1. State Mandate Reimbursements

2. Certain types of Debt Service Costs

3. Qualified Capital Outlay
4. Costs of complying with court orders and federal mandates.
5. Appropriation required to refund taxes;
6. Local agency loan funds or indebtedness funds, or investment funds in bank

accounts; and

7. Redevelopment agency or successor agency property tax increment funds
(because such agencies do not have the power to levy a property tax)

The City of Winters adopts the Appropriation Limit prior to the beginning of the fiscal year for
which it pertains by resolution, and a discussion of the limit is included in the budget when it is
submitted for approval to the City Council prior to the beginning of the fiscal year for which the
budget is adopted.

The City of Winters is cautious in its spending and has never had appropriations subject to the
limitation higher than 63% of the limitation.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

ATTACHEMENTS:

Resolution 2020-27

Attachment A-Appropriation Limit Calculation
Attachment B-Department of Finance Annual Price and Population Information

15



RESOLUTION 2020-27

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WINTERS ESTABLISHING AN APPROPRIATION LIMIT
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE XIHB OF THE CALIFORNIA

CONSTITUTION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021

WHEREAS, Article XIIIB of the Constitution of the State of California provides
for the annual appropriations of governmental units to be the subject of limitations, and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Winters that an appropriation limit for the Fiscal 2020-2021 pursuant to Article XIIIB of
the Constitution of the State of California be established in the amount of $8,272,481 and
the same is hereby approved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council, City of Winters, the 2nd day of
June 2020 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Wade Cowan, Mayor

ATTEST:

Tracy Jensen, CITY CLERK

16



RESOLUTION 2020-27

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

WINTERS ESTABLISHING AN APPROPRIATION LIMIT

PURSUANT TO ARTICLE XHIB OF THE CALIFORNIA

CONSTITUTION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021

WHEREAS, Article XHIB of the Constitution of the State of California provides
for the annual appropriations of governmental units to be the subject of limitations, and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Winters that an appropriation limit for the Fiscal 2020-2021 pursuant to Article XIIIB of
the Constitution of the State of California be established in the amount of $8,272,481 and
the same is hereby approved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council, City of Winters, the 2nd day of
June 2020 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Wade Cowan, Mayor

ATTEST;

Tracy Jensen, CITY CLERK

17



Attachment A Page 1

Attachment A

CITY OF WINTERS

APPROPRIATION LIMIT

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

APPROPRIATION LIMIT. FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 $ 7.854,834

ADJUSTMENT FACTOR:

POPULATION GROWTH PERCENT 1.053171

ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT IN DOLLARS

APPROPRIATION LIMIT FISCAL YEAR 2020.21 $ 8,272,481

18



Attachment A Page 2

2020-2021

APPROPRIATION LIMIT

Per Capita change = 3.73
Population change = 1.53

Per capital converted to a ratio

3.73+100 = 1.0373

100

Population converted to a ratio

1.53+100 = 1.0153

100

Calculation Factor for FY 2020-2021

1.0373 X.1.0153 = 1.053171

19



AHt>£ihnunir-&

o*-

II 11

DEPARTMENT OF*  _
F" I /V hJ P" EaAVttM NEWSQM - BOVgRlxjgR
^ 1 1^ J \ I ̂  State Capitol ■ Room 1 1 45 ■ SAcnAHCNTO CA ■ 958 1 4*4998 ■ www.oar-.cA.sov
□Fnce arxHE director

May 2020

Dear Fiscal Officer:

Subject: Price Factor and Population Information

Appropriations Limit
California Revenue and Taxation Code section 2227 requires the Department of Finance to
transmit an estimate of the percentage change in population to local governments. Each local
jurisdiction must use their percentage change in population factor tor January 1, 2020, in
conjunction with a change in the cost of living, or price factor, to calculate their appropriations
limit for fiscal year 2020-21. Attachment A provides the change in California's per capita personal
income and an example for utilizing the price factor and population percentage change factor
to calculate the 2020-21 appropriations limit. Attachment B provides the city and unincorporated
county population percentage change. Attachment C provides the population percentage
change tor counties and their summed incorporated areas. The population percentage change
data excludes federal and state institutionalized populations and military populations.

Population Percent Change for Special Disfricfs
Some special districts must establish an annual appropriations limit. California Revenue and
Taxation Code section 2228 provides additional Information regarding the appropriations limit.
Article Xlli B, section 9(C) of the California Constitution exempts certain special districts from the
appropriations limit calculation mandate. The code section and the California Constitution can
be accessed at the following website: httD://leainto.legislature.cQ.aov/fQces/codes.xhtml.

Special districts required by law to calculate their appropriations limit must present the calculation
as part of their annual audit. Any questions special districts have on this requirement should be
directed to their county, district legal counsel, or the law itself. No state agency reviews the local
appropriations limits.

Population Certification
The population certification program applies only to cities and counties. California Revenue and
Taxation Code section 11005.6 mandates Finance to automatically certify any population
estimate that exceeds the current certified population with the State Controller's Office. Finance
will certify the higher estimafe to the State Controller by June 1, 2020.

Please Note: The prior year's city population estimates may be revised. The per capita personal
income change is based on historical data. Given the stay-at-home orders due to COVID-19,
growth in the coming years may be substantially lower than recent trends.

It you have any questions regarding this data, please contact the Demographic Research Unit at
(916)323-4086.

/$/ Keely Martin Bosler

KEELY MARTIN BOSLER
Director

Attachment

20



May 2020

Attachment^ ^

A. Price Factor: Article XIII B specifies that local jurisdictions select their cost of living
factor to compute their appropriation limit by a vote of their governing body. The
cost of living factor provided here is per capita personal income. If the percentage
change in per capita personal income is selected, the percentage change to be
used in setting the fiscal year 2020-21 appropriation limit is:

Per Capita Personal Income

Fiscal Year Percentage change
(FY) over prior year

2020-21 3.73

B. Following is an example using sample population change and the change in
California per capita personal income as growth factors in computing a 2020-21
appropriation limit.

2020-21:

Per Capita Cost of Living Change = 3.73 percent
Population Change = 0.22 percent

Per Capita Cost of Living converted to a ratio: 3.73 + 100 = 1.0373

100

Population converted to a ratio: 0.22+ 100 = 1.0022

100

Calculation of factor for FY 2020-21: 1.0373 x 1.0022 = 1.0396

21



A  6/3

Fiscal Year 2020-21

Attachment B

Annual Percent Chonge in Population Minus Exclusions*

Januory 1,2019 to January 1,2020 and Total Population, January 1,2019

IfitsL

County Percent Change ... Poputotion Minus Exclusions --- POPVlptipn

City 2019-2020 1-1-19 1-1.20 1-1-2020

Yolo

Davis 0.01 69,179 69,183 69,183

West Sacramento 0.62 53.995 54,328 54,328

Winters 1.53 7.169 7,279 7,279

Woodland 1.12 60,068 60,742 60,742

Unincorporated -1.02 30,485 30,173 30,173

CountyTotal 0.37 220,896 221,705 221,705

•Exclusions include residents on federal military installations and group quarters residents in state mental
institutions, state and federal correctional institutions and veteran homes.

22



CITY OF

rr f  f rf

Est. 1875

CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

TO: Honorable Mayor and Council Members

DATE : June 20, 2020

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manage

FROM : Tracy S. Jensen, Records Manager/City Clerk

SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Adoption of Resolution 2020-26. A Resolution of the
City Council of the City of Winters, Approving the Annual Levy Report and
Ordering the Levy and Collection of Assessments Within the City of
Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District, Fiscal Year
2020/2021

RECOMMENDATION:

1.

2.

Conduct a Public Hearing approving the Engineer's Report and ordering
the levy of assessments for the Citywide Maintenance Assessment District
Adopt Resolution 2020-26, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Winters, Approving the Annual Levy Report, and Ordering the Levy and
Collection of Assessments Within the City of Winters City-Wide
Maintenance Assessment District, Fiscal Year 2020/2021

BACKGROUND

As provided in the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of
Division 15 of the Streets and Highways Code of California, beginning with Section
22500 and by previous Resolution, the City Council initiated proceedings for the "City of
Winters Citywide Maintenance Assessment District" for the annual levy and collection of
assessments to pay for the operation, maintenance and servicing of landscaping and
lighting and all appurtenant facilities and ordering the preparation of an Engineer's
Annual Levy Report regarding the District and assessment for Fiscal Year 2020/2021,
pursuant to Chapter 1, Section 22565 of the Act.

23



The Citywide Maintenance Assessment District pays for street lighting and park and
landscape maintenance. Funds reside in the Citywide Maintenance Assessment
District fund. The Assessment District budget for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 is
$214,944.98. The Engineer {Willdan Financial Services) selected by the City Council
has prepared and filed with the C\\y Clerk said Report in conjunction with the District
and the levy of assessments for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 (beginning July 1, 2020 and
ending on June 30, 2021) in accordance with Chapter 3, Section 22623 of the Act.

ALTERNATIVE: None

FISCAL IMPACT: None by this action.

ATTACHMENTS; Resolution 2020-26

2020/2021 Engineer's Annual Levy Report

24



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-26

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA,
AMENDING AND/OR APPROVING THE ANNUAL LEVY REPORT, AND ORDERING
THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS WITHIN THE CITY OF WINTERS
CITY-WIDE MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT, FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021.

The City Council of the City of Winters, California (hereafter referred to as the "City
Council") does resolve as follows:

WHEREAS, The City Council has, by previous Resolutions, ordered the
preparation of the Engineer's Annual Levy Report (hereafter referred to as the "Report")
for said district known and designated as: City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance
Assessment District (hereafter referred to as the "District"), pursuant to the provisions of
the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the Streets and
Highways Code of California, beginning with Section 22500 (hereafter referred to as the
"Act"): and,

WHEREAS, there has been presented to this City Council the "Engineer's Annual
Levy Report" as required by Chapter 3, Section 22623 of said Act, and as previously
directed by Resolution; and,

WHEREAS, this City Council has carefully examined and reviewed the Report as
presented, and is satisfied with each and all of the items and documents as set forth
therein, and is satisfied that the levy has been spread in accordance with the benefits
received from the improvements, operation, maintenance and services to be performed,
as set forth in said Report; and,

WHEREAS, this City and its legal counsel have reviewed Proposition 218 and
found that these assessments comply with applicable provisions of Section XIIID of the
California State Constitution; and,

WHEREAS, upon reasonable written notice by Yolo County of any claim or
challenge, the City of Winters agrees to defend with counsel of its choice, indemnify and
hold harmless Yolo County, its Board of Supervisors, officers, officials, agents and
employees (collectively "the County"), against the payment of any liabilities, losses, costs
and expenses, including attorney fees and court costs, not due to the County's own active
negligence or willful misconduct, which the County may incur in the exercise and
performance of its powers and duties in placing these assessments onto the County roll
and tax bills for the City of Winters;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE
CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF WINTERS, AS FOLLOWS;

Page 1

25



Section 1 Following notice duly given, the City Council has held a full and fair public
hearing regarding the District, the levy and collection of assessments, the Report
prepared in connection therewith, and considered all oral and written statements, protests
and communications made or filed by interested persons regarding these matters.

Section 2 Based upon its review (and amendments, as applicable) of the Report, a copy
of which has been presented to the City Council, is hereby approved (as amended), and
is ordered to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk as a permanent record and to remain
open to public inspection, the City Council hereby finds and determines that:

1) the land within the District will receive special benefit by the operation,
maintenance and servicing of improvements, located within the
boundaries of the District; and,

ii) the District Includes all of the lands so benefited; and,

Hi) the net amount to be assessed upon the lands within the District in
accordance with the fee for the Fiscal Year commencing July 1, 2020,
and ending June 30, 2021, is apportioned by a formula and method
which fairly distributes the net amount among all eligible parcels in
proportion to the estimated special benefits to be received by each
parcel from the improvements and services.

Section 3 The maintenance, operation and servicing of the improvements and
appurtenant facilities shall be performed pursuant to the Act. The City Council hereby
orders the proposed improvements to be made, which improvements are briefly described
as follows: the installation, maintenance and operation of and the furnishing of services
and materials for public parks, public open space, riparian vegetation, public greenbelts,
street landscape strips, landscaping adjacent to public buildings, bank stabilization,
furnishing of utilities and lighting and all necessary appurtenances.

Section 4 The County Auditor of the County of Yolo shall enter on the County
Assessment Roll opposite each eligible parcel of land the amount of levy so apportioned
by the formula and method outlined in the Report, and such levies shall be collected at
the same time and in the same manner as the County taxes are collected, pursuant to
Chapter 4, Article 2, Section 22646 of the Act. After collection by the County, the net
amount of the levy shall be paid to the City Treasurer.

Section 5 The City Treasurer shall deposit all money representing assessments
collected by the County for the District to the credit of a fund for the City of Winters City-
Wide Maintenance Assessment District and such money shall be expended only for the
maintenance, operation and servicing of the improvements as described in Section 3.

Section 6 The adoption of this Resolution constitutes the District levy for the Fiscal Year
commencing July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.

Page 2

26



Section 7 The City Clerk, or their designate, Is hereby authorized and directed to file the
levy with the County Auditor upon adoption of this Resolution, pursuant to Chapter 4,
Article 1, Section 22641 of the Act.

Section 8 That the above recitals are all true and correct. That the City Clerk shall certify
to the passage and adoption of this Resolution, and the minutes of this meeting shall so
reflect the final approval of the Report.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WINTERS, THIS 2"^ DAY OF JUNE, 2020.

Wade Cowan, Mayor
City of Winters

Tracy Jensen, City Clerk
City of Winters

I, Tracy Jensen, City Clerk of the City of Winters, County of Yolo, State of California do hereby
certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-26 was regularly adopted by the City Council of
said City of Winters at a regular meeting of said council held on the 2"^ day of June, 2020, by
the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAINED:

Tracy Jensen, City Clerk
City of Winters

Page 3

27



::iTY OF

v^INTERS
('a//'/(•

est. 1875

^ "V

V. '

' /' t •- City of Winters

City-Wide Maintenance Assessment

District

2020/2021 Engineer's Annual Levy Report

Intent Meeting; May 19, 2020
Public Hearing: June 2 2020

27368 Via Induttria

Suite 200

Temecula. CA 92590

T 953.587.3500 | 800.755.6864

F 951587.3510

N I

www.wiiklan.com

; WILLDAN

28



ENGINEER S REPORT AFFIDAVIT
City of Winters Maintenance Districi formed pursuant to the

Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972

City of Winters
Yolo County, State of California

This Report contains ine comptete Engreer s Annual Levy Ftepon foi the City of Winters
Maintenance District incluc^g (he tx>undaries. ffnprovefnents. budgets and assessments
to be levied foi Fiscal Year 2020/2021, as they existed at the time of the passage of the
Resoiution of Intention. Reference is hereby made to the Yoio Countv Assessors maps
for a detailed descnpfton of the lines and dimensions of parcels within the District

The undersigned respecttutty submits the endosed Report as directed by the City
CoundL

Dated thts 22"d day of May ..2020

WVIdan Financial Servicee

Assessment Engineer

By:
X

Tony Thrasher. Protect Manager
DIstnct Artninistration Services

Richard Kopecky
R. C e # 16742

Or
16742

k.EXP
*

<p v\v 5^

Of CAU

29



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents

I. OVERVIEW 1

A. Introduction

B. Applicable Legislation 2

II. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT & IMPROVEMENTS 4

A. The District

B. The Improvements

III. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT 6

A. General g

B. Benefit Analysis 7

C. Assessment Methodology 9

IV. DISTRICT BUDGET

A. Description of Budget Items 11

B. District Budget A

APPENDIX A - DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAPS A

APPENDIX B — 2020/2021 ASSESSMENT ROLL B

30



WILLDAN

/■ OVERVIEW
A. Introduction

The City of Winters fCity") annually levies and collects special assessments in
order to maintain the improvements within the City of Winters City-Wide
Maintenance Assessment District ("District"). The District was formed in 1993
and is annually levied pursuant to the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972. Part
2 of Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways Code ("1972 Act"). The
boundary of the District is coterminous with the City limits.
This Engineer's Annual Levy Report ("Report") has been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 3, Section 22622 of the 1972 Act.
This Report describes the District, the improvements therein, any annexations
or other modifications to the District including any substantial changes to the
improvements, the method of apportionment, the boundaries of the District, and
financial information including the district budgets and proposed annual
assessments for Fiscal Year 2020/2021. The proposed assessments are
based on the historic and estimated costs to maintain the improvements that
provide a special benefit to properties within the District. The costs of
improvements and the annual levy including all expenditures, deficits,
surpluses, revenues, and reserves are assessed to each parcel within the
District proportionate to the parcel's special benefits.
For the purposes of this Report, the word "parcel" refers to an individual
property assigned its own Assessment Number by the County of Yolo
Assessor's Office. The County of Yolo Auditor/Controller uses Assessment
Numbers and specific fund numbers to identify properties assessed for special
district benefit assessments on the tax roll.

Pursuant to Chapters, beginning with Section 22620 of the 1972 Act, the City
Council shall conduct a noticed annual public hearing to consider all public
comments and written protests regarding the District. Following the annual
public hearing and review of the Engineer's Annual Levy Report, the City
Council may order amendments to the Report or confirm the Report as
submitted. Following final approval of the Report and confirmation of the
assessments contained therein, the City Council will by resolution: order the
improvements to be made and confirm the levy and collection of assessments
pursuant to Chapter 4, Article 1, beginning with Section 22640 of the 1972 Act.
The assessment rate and method of apportionment described in this Report as
approved or modified by the City Council defines the assessments to be applied
to each parcel within the District for Fiscal Year 2020/2021.

The assessments as approved will be submitted to the County
Auditor/Controller to be included on the property tax roll for each parcel within
the District. If any parcel submitted for collection is identified by the County
Auditor/Controller to be an invalid parcel number for the current fiscal year, a
corrected parcel number and/or new parcel numbers will be identified and
resubmitted to the County. The assessment amount to be levied and collected

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 1

31



WILLDAN

for the resubmitted parcel or parcels shall be based on the method of
apportionment and assessment rate contained in this Report as approved by
the City Council.

B. Applicable Legislation

The District has been formed and is annually levied pursuant to the
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the California
Streets and Highways Code, beginning with Section 22500. The assessments
and methods of apportionment described in this Report utilize commonly
accepted assessment engineering practices and have been calculated and
proportionately spread to each parcel based on the special benefits received.

Compliance with the California Constitution

All assessments described in this Report and approved by the City Council are
prepared in accordance with the 1972 Act and are in compliance with the
provisions of the California Constitution Article XIIID {"Article XIIID"), which was
added to the California Constitution with the passage of statewide Proposition
218 in 1996.

In compliance with the substantive and procedural requirements of Article
XIIID, the City initiated and conducted a property owner Validation Vote. At the
conclusion of the Public Hearing on June 3, 1997, all property owner ballots
returned were opened and tabulated and confirmed in resolution 97-24. The
maximum assessment rate of $82.50 per Equivalent Residential Dwelling Unit
and $26.25 per Non-Residential parcel was approved by the majority of
property owners in the District. Any assessment rate levied that is less than the
maximum assessment rate is considered an exempt assessment pursuant to
Article XIIID Section 5(b). The proposed assessment for any fiscal year may be
increased over the previous fiscal year provided the assessment rate does not
exceed the maximum assessment rate of $82.50 per Equivalent Residential
Dwelling Unit and $26.25 per Non-Residential parcel. Any proposed new or
increased assessment that exceeds the current maximum assessment shall
comply with all provisions of Article XIIID Section 4 including a property owner
protest proceeding (property owner assessment balloting).

Provisions of the 1972 Act (Improvements and Services)

As generally defined, the improvements and the associated assessments for
any District formed pursuant to the 1972 Act may include one or any
combination of the following:

1) The installation or planting of landscaping.

2) The installation or construction of statuary, fountains, and other ornamental
structures and facilities.

3) The installation or construction of public lighting facilities, including, but not
limited to streetlights and traffic signals.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 2

32



WILLDAN

4) The installation or construction of any facilities which are appurtenant to any
of the foregoing or which are necessary or convenient for the maintenance
or servicing thereof; including but not limited to, grading, removal of debris,
the installation or construction of curbs, gutters, walls, sidewalks, or paving,
or water, irrigation, drainage, or electrical facilities.

5) The installation of park or recreational improvements including, but not
limited to the following:

a) Land preparation, such as grading, leveling, cutting and filling, sod.
landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks, and drainage.

b) Lights, playground equipment, play courts and public restrooms.

6) The maintenance or servicing, or both, of any of the foregoing including the
furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance,
operation, and servicing of any improvement, including, but not limited to:
a) Repair, removal, or replacement of all or any part of any improvements;
b) Grading, clearing, removal of debris, the installation, repair or

construction of curbs, gutters, walls, sidewalks, or paving, or water,
irrigation, drainage, or electrical facilities;

c) Providing for the life, growth, health, and beauty of landscaping,
including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, fertilizing, or treating
for disease or injury;

d) The removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris, and other solid waste;
e) The cleaning, sandblasting, and painting of walls and other

improvements to remove or cover graffiti.
f) Electric current or energy, gas. or other agent for the lighting or operation

of any other improvements.

g) Water for the irrigation of any landscaping, the operation of any
fountains, or the maintenance of any other improvements.

7) The acquisition of land for park, recreational or open-space purposes, or
the acquisition of any existing improvement otherwise authorized by the
1972 Act.

8) Incidental expenses associated with the improvements including, but not
limited to:

a) The cost of preparation of the report, including plans, specifications,
estimates, diagram, and assessment;

b) The costs of printing, advertising, and the publishing, posting and
mailing of notices;

c) Compensation payable to the County for collection of assessments;

d) Compensation of any engineer or attorney employed to render services;
e) Any other expenses incidental to the construction, installation, or

maintenance and servicing of the improvements; and,

f) Costs associated with any elections held for the approval of a new or
increased assessment.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 3

33



v/ ŴILLDAN

II. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT & IMPROVEMENTS

The location, boundaries and specific improvements provided within the District
are described in this section. The determination and calculation of special
benefit is discussed in the Method of Apportionment and the corresponding
expenses, revenues and assessments are summarized in the District Budget.

A. The District

The boundary of the District is coterminous with the City limits. The City is
located in the southwestern corner of Yolo County. The southern boundary of
the City is Putah Creek. The City is bordered to the west by Dry Creek and a
view of the Vaca Mountain Range. The eastern limit is Highway 505 while the
northern boundary runs to vast tracts of farmland. The City is approximately
10 miles west of the City of Davis and 10 miles north of the City of Vacaville.
Winters' urban limit line contains approximately 1,980 acres, of which 1,277 are
currently within the incorporated limits.

The principle highways near the City are Interstate 505 and State Highway 128.
1-505 forms the eastern boundary of the City limits and connects to Interstate
80 ten miles to the south and Interstate 5 twenty-three miles to the north. State
Highway 128 passes directly through the City and is a major access route from
Sacramento and Davis to Lake Berryessa and the Napa Valley.

B. The Improvements

All improvements within the District are maintained and serviced on a regular
basis. City staff will determine the frequency and specific maintenance
operations required. The District assessments may fund all necessary utilities,
operations, services, administration and maintenance costs associated with the

improvements. The annual costs of providing the improvements within the
District are spread among all benefiting parcels in proportion to the benefits
received. The expenditures and assessments set forth in this report are based
upon the City's estimate of the costs associated with the improvements
including all labor, personnel, equipment, materials and administrative
expenses.

The following is a brief description of the improvements to be maintained and
operated:

1. City Park, Rotary Park, Valley Oak Park, Blue Oak Park (formerly Putah
Creek Hamlet Park), Winters Highlands Park (upon dedication and
construction), and the grounds of City Hall and the Community Center:

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 4

34



W^A/ILLDAN

includes maintenance of sidewalks, curbs and gutters, walkways, trees,
shrubs, groundcover, grass, irrigation system, park lighting, play
equipment and structures, ball fields, fencing, restrooms, drinking
fountains, benches, tables, drainage facilities, slopes, signs, parking lot
and street frontage improvements, and other related improvements and
facilities.

2. Street Lighting: street, park and trail lighting within the entire District.

3. Median Island Landscaping: public landscaping and irrigation
improvements in the median islands within the District.

4. Curbside Landscaping: public landscaping and fencing, behind
the curb on collector and arterial streets, where the street is not
fronted by a residence or business.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 5

35



WILLDAN

III. METHOD OF APPORTIONIVIENT
A. General

The 1972 Act permits the establishment of assessment districts by agencies
for the purpose of providing certain public improvements which include the
construction, maintenance and servicing of public lights, landscaping and
appurtenant facilities. The 1972 Act further requires that the cost of these
improvements be levied according to benefit rather than assessed value;

"The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment
district may be apportioned by any formula or method which fairly
distributes the net amount among all assessable lots or parcels in
proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by each such lot or
parcel from the improvements."

The formula used for calculating assessments in the District therefore reflects
the composition of the parcels, and the improvements and services provided,
to fairly apportion the costs based on estimated benefit to each parcel.

In addition, pursuant to the Article XIIID Section 4, a parcel's assessment may
not exceed the reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit conferred on
that parcel and provides that only special benefits are assessable and the
District must separate the general benefits from the special benefits.

PROPOSITION 213 BENEFIT ANALYSIS

In conjunction with the provisions of the 1972 Act, the California Constitution
Article XIIID addresses several key criteria for the levy of assessments, notably:

Article XIIID Section 2(d) defines District as follows:

"District means an area determined by an agency to contain all parcels which
will receive a special benefit from a proposed public improvement or property-
related service";

Article XIIID Section 2(i) defines Special Benefit as follows:

"Special benefit" means a particular and distinct benefit over and above general
benefits conferred on real property located in the district or to the public at large.
General enhancement of property value does not constitute "special benefit."

Article XIIID Section 4(a) defines proportional special benefit assessments as
follows:

"An agency which proposes to levy an assessment shall identify all parcels
which will have a special benefit conferred upon them and upon which an
assessment will be imposed. The proportionate special benefit derived by each

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 6

36



W^WILLDAN

identified parcel shall be determined in relationship to the entirety of the capital
cost of a public improvement, the maintenance and operation expenses of a
public improvement, or the cost of the property related service being provided.
No assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable
cost of the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel."

This District was formed to establish and provide for the improvements that
enhance the presentation of the surrounding properties and developments.
These improvements will directly benefit the parcels to be assessed within the
District. The assessments and method of apportionment is based on the
premise that the assessments will be used to construct and install landscape
and lighting improvements within the existing City-Wide Maintenance
Assessment District as well as provide for the annual maintenance of those
improvements, and the assessment revenues generated by District will be used
solely for such purposes.

The costs of the proposed improvements have been identified and allocated to
properties within the District based on special benefit. The improvements to be
provided by this District and for which properties will be assessed have been
identified as an essential component and local amenity that provides a direct
reflection and extension of the properties within the District which the property
owners and residents have expressed a high level of support.

The method of apportionment (method of assessment) set forth in the Report
is based on the premise that each assessed property receives special benefits
from the landscape and lighting improvements within the District, and the
assessment obligation for each parcel reflects that parcel's proportional special
benefits as compared to other properties that receive special benefits.

To identify and determine the proportional special benefit to each parcel within
the District, it Is necessary to consider the entire scope of the improvements
provided as well as the properties that benefit from those improvements. The
improvements and the associated costs described in this Report, have been
carefully reviewed and have been identified and allocated based on a benefit
rationale and calculations that proportionally allocate the net cost of only those
improvements determined to be of special benefit to properties within the
District. The various public improvements and the associated costs have been
identified as either "general benefit" (not assessed) or "special benefit".

B. Benefit Analysis

Each of the improvements and the associated costs have been carefully
reviewed by the City and the corresponding assessments have been
proportionately spread to each parcel based on special benefits received from
the improvements.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 7

37



V/WILLDAN

Special Benefits — The method of apportionment (assessment methodology)
is based on the premise that each of the assessed parcels within the District
receives benefit from the improvements maintained and financed by annual
assessments. Specifically, the assessments are for the maintenance of local
street lighting and landscaped improvements. The desirability and security of
properties within the District are enhanced by the presence of street lighting
and well-maintained landscaping in close proximity to those properties.

The special benefits associated with the local landscaping improvements are
specifically:

•  Enhanced desirability of properties through association with the
Improvements.

•  Improved aesthetic appeal of properties within the District providing a
positive representation of the area.

•  Enhanced adaptation of the urban environment within the natural
environment from adequate green space and landscaping.

•  Environmental enhancement through improved erosion resistance, and
dust and debris control.

•  Increased sense of pride in ownership of property within the District
resulting from well-maintained improvements associated with the
properties.

•  Reduced criminal activity and property-related crimes (especially
vandalism) against properties in the District through well-maintained
surroundings and amenities including abatement of graffiti.

•  Enhanced environmental quality of the parcels within the District by
moderating temperatures, providing oxygenation and attenuating noise.

The special benefits of street lighting are the convenience, safety, and security
of property, improvements, and goods. Specifically:

•  Enhanced deterrence of crime and the aid to police protection.

•  Increased nighttime safety on roads and highways.

•  Improved ability of pedestrians and motorists to see.

•  Improved ingress and egress to property.

•  Reduced vandalism and other criminal acts and damage to improvements
or property.

•  Improved traffic circulation and reduced nighttime accidents and personal
property loss.

•  Increased promotion of business during nighttime hours in the case of
commercial properties.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment Distnct Page 8

38



WILLDAN

The assessments have been apportioned proportionate to the benefit received.
Although the District contains a mixture of residential and non-residential uses,
it is the belief of the City that residential properties benefit from all of the
maintained improvements and commercial and other non-residential properties
receive only benefits from street lighting. The improvements maintained serve
to increase the quality of life in the community and therefore all residents benefit,
without regard to lot size, occupancy, etc. The assessments are therefore
apportioned equally to all residential dwelling units within the City. Commercial
and other non-residential properties have been assessed an equivalent share of
the cost of energy and maintenance of the street lighting system.

Properties owned by other agencies and City-owned lands were reviewed to
establish benefit. The Winters Unified School District receives a proportional
benefit and has entered into a Joint Use Facilities Agreement with the City, which
offsets the benefits received by the School District through the equitable use of
School facilities. Therefore the School District properties have been assigned a
zero assessment.

In prior years there was an added assessment for bank stabilization for those
parcels that receive direct benefit from the repair of said creek banks. Unused
money for bank stabilization is held in reserve and there are no new or additional
assessments for bank stabilization.

There has been a provision made by the City Council to allow for reimbursement
of the assessment. This reimbursement is to be made to all property owners who
can prove that they have paid the assessment and can show a household
income that falls below the City Council approved minimums. It is estimated that
approximately 5% of the assessed residential property owners would qualify for
this reimbursement. Consequently, some refunds will be made that will result in
a net reduction of revenues.

C. Assessment Methodology

Equivalent Benefit Units: To assess benefits equitably, it is necessary to
correlate the different type of parcels within the District to each other as well as
their relationship to the improvements. The Equivalent Benefit Unit method of
apportioning benefit is typically seen as the most appropriate and equitable
assessment methodology for districts formed under the 1972 Act, as the benefit
to each parcel from the improvements are typically apportioned as a function
of land use type, size and development.

The Equivalent Benefit Unit method of assessment apportionment uses the
single-family home site as the basic unit of assessment. A single-family home
site equals one Equivalent Benefit Unit (EBU). Every other land use is typically
converted to EBU's based on an assessment formula that equates the
property's specific development status, type of development (land use), and
size of the property, as compared to a single-family home site.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 9

39



W^WILLDAN

For the purposes of relating a single-family unit to other residential properties
within the District, all residential units were considered as equivalent, i.e. single-
family residences are equivalent to apartment units and other multi-family
dwelling units. Commercial and other non-residential properties have been
assessed per parcel.

The following formulas are used to calculate the annual assessments. The
Balance to Levy represents the total amount to be collected through the annual
assessments. The Levy per EBU (Assessment Rate) is the result of dividing
the total Balance to Levy by the total District EBU. This Assessment Rate
multiplied by each parcel's individual EBU determines each parcel's levy
amount.

Street Lighting & Administration

Street Lighting & Administration Costs / Totai EBU = Levy per EBU

Levy per EBU x Parcel's EBU = Parcel's Levy Amount-Lighting & Administration

Other Budget Items

Remaining Costs / Residential EBU = Levy per Residential EBU

Levy per Residential EBU x Residential Parcel's EBU = Parcel's Levy Amount-
Other

A parcel's total levy amount is calculated by adding together the Parcel's Levy
Amount -Lighting and Administration and the Parcel's Levy Amount-Other.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 10

40



V^VVILLDAN

IV. DISTRICT BUDGET
A. Description of Budget Items

The following describes the services and costs that are funded through the
District, shown in the District Budget, Section IV B.

DIRECT COSTS:

Park Maintenance — Includes general operation, maintenance, water,
electrical costs, repairs, removals and replacements, spraying, trimming and
treatments, debris and other related expenses.

Street Lighting — Includes all costs for removal, replace and/or repair of
street/trail lights and appurtenant facilities, power and related costs, pole
painting and other related expenses.

Median Island Landscape Maintenance — Includes maintenance,
replacements, repairs of irrigation and landscaping, power costs, median curb
repairs, trimming, spraying, treatments and other related expenses.

Curbside Landscape Maintenance— Includes maintenance, replacements,
repairs of irrigation and landscaping, power costs, sidewalk replacement,
trimming, spraying, treatments and other related expenses.

ADMINISTRATION COSTS:

District Administration — The cost to all particular departments and staff of
the City for providing the coordination of District maintenance, operations and
services of the District, response to public concerns and education, and
procedures associated with the levy and collection of assessments. Also, the
costs of contracting with professionals to provide any additional administrative,
legal, or engineering services specific to the District.

County Administration Fee — The costs to the District for the County to
collect assessments on the property tax bills.

LEVY BREAKDOWN:

Reserve Collection/ (Transfer) — The 1972 Act pursuant to Chapter 1, Article
4 Section 22569 (a), provides for a District Reserve Fund. This Reserve Fund
provides for the collection of funds to operate the District from the time period
of July 1 (beginning of the Fiscal Year) through December 10'^ or when the
County provides the City with the first installment of assessments collected
from the property tax bills (typically January or February). Negative amounts
shown for this budget item represent transfers from the Reserve Fund that
reduces the Balance to Levy. Maintaining a fully funded Reserve eliminates the

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 11

41



WILLDAN

need for the City to transfer funds from non-District accounts to pay for
operational expenses during the first half of the fiscal year and also provides
the District with sufficient funds to address any unforeseen or unusual
expenditures that may occur during the year.

Capital Improvement Fund Collection/{Transfer) — The 1972 Act pursuant
to Chapter 5, beginning with Section 22660, provides for the District to establish
by resolution an assessment installment plan for proposed improvements and
expenditures that are greater than can be conveniently raised from a single
annual assessment. Depending on the nature of the planned improvements,
the collection of funds necessary to complete the project may be collected over
a period up to thirty years, but typically not more than five years. The funds
collected shall be accumulated in a separate improvement fund commonly
referred to as a Capital Improvement Fund (GIF) and are not considered part
of the regular maintenance of the improvements or the Reserve Fund.

Because the money accumulated in the Capital Improvement Fund is for a
specific planned project (budgeted separately), the amount shown for this item
in the annual budget will typically be a positive number representing the amount
being collected that year as part of the Balance to Levy. A negative number
(Transfer) should only occur after the project has been completed and excess
funds are being credited back to the District's regular accounts. The actual fund
balances and expenditures for Capital Improvements are clearly identified
under the Fund Balance Information section of the Budget.

Although the Budget shown in this Report contains GIF line items, a Capital
Improvement Plan has not been established for this District.

Contribution Replenishment — This item represents repayments of amounts
that had been temporarily advanced to the District from other revenue sources
(usually the General Fund) or represents funds being loaned to the District for
the current Fiscal Year that must be repaid by future assessments. Similar to
the Reserve Collection/ (Transfer) line item, this item directly impacts the
Reserve Fund Balances either positively or negatively.

Repayments are shown as a positive number and represent additional monies
being collected in the current annual assessment to repay a prior loan. These
loans are typically for capital Improvement expenditures or unforeseen
expenditures incurred in prior years and Reserve Fund monies were not
sufficient to cover the expenses. To ensure the ongoing operation and
maintenance of the improvements, the City may advance funds to the District
as a temporary loan to meet current expenditures, and collect repayment of the
loan through the annual assessments the following year or possibly over
several years. Generally, all available Reserve Funds are exhausted before a
temporary loan is advanced to the District and the Beginning Reserve Fund
Balance will be a negative number indicating the loan amount still outstanding.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 12

42



v/WILLDAN

A loan for the current fiscal year (Contribution) is shown as a negative number.
If the District is expected to incur significant expenditures in the current fiscal
year for special services or capital improvements (upgrades or refurbishing of
the improvements) and the proposed assessment revenues (annual
assessments) and/or available Reserve Funds are not sufficient to cover the
expenditures, the City may advance funds to the District as a temporary loan
to meet the proposed expenditures. Generally, all available Reserve Funds
must be exhausted before a temporary loan is advanced to the District and any
funds temporarily loaned in excess of the available Reserve Funds will be
reflected as a negative Ending Reserve Fund Balance. This negative Reserve
Fund Balance will be repaid and replenished through future assessment
revenues.

Other Revenue Source/General Fund Contribution — This item includes
additional funds designated for the District that are not annual assessments.
These funds are added to the District account to reduce assessments, and may
be from non-District or District sources including City General Fund
Contributions and/or interest earnings. Any funds indicated on this line will be
shown as a negative number indicating a reduction in the amount to be levied
and represent funds that do not have to be repaid.

Balance to Levy — This is the total amount to be collected for the current fiscal
year through the annual assessments (for special benefits). The Balance to
Levy represents the sum of Total Direct and Administration Costs, Reserve
Fund Contributions or Transfers, Contributions from Other Revenue Source,
and the Contribution Replenishment. Only those costs related to the
improvements identified as special benefits are levied and collected on the tax
roll.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District Page 13

43



v/WILLDAN

B. District Budget

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 District Budget

Cite df YHnlers
City-Wide

2020/2021

Levy Components Total Budget

DIRECT COSTS

Park Maintenance $193,209.00
Street Lighting 62,000.00

Ripanan Area Mantenance 0.00

Median Island Landscape Maintenance 1,000.00

Curbside Landscape Maintenance 4,000.00

Bank Stabilization 0.00

TOTAL DIRECT $260,209.00

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

District Administration $27,572.00
County Administration Fee 2,229.00

TOTAL ADMIN $29,801.00

COLLECTIONS/(CREDITS) APPLIED TO LEVY

TOTAL DIRECT AND ADMIN COSTS $290,010.00
Reserve Collection 0.00

Capital Improvement Fund Collection/(Transler) 0.00

Contribution Replenishment 0.00

General Fund (Contributions) (75,065.02)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ($75,065.02)
Balance to Levy (Budgeted) $214,944.98

Total Revenue at Maximum Rate $214,946.25
Variance above/(below) Maximum Revenue ($1.27)

Levy at Applied Rate $214,944.98
Applied Charge 214,944.98

DISTRICT STATISTICS

Total Parcels 2,312

Total Residential Parcels Levied 2,102

Total Non-Residential Parcels Levied 127

Total Parcels Levied 2,229

Total Equivalent Residential Benefit Units 2,565

Total Equivalent Non-Residential Benefit Units 127

Applied Residential Levy per Benefit Unit $82.50

Applied Non-Residential Levy per Benefit Unit $26.24

Maximum Levy per Residential Benefit Unit (Current Year) $82,50

Maximum Levy per Non-Residential Benefit Unit (Current Year) $26.25

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District 14

44



WILLDAN

APPENDIX A - DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAPS

The boundary map for the District has been previously approved and submitted to the
City in the format required by the 1972 Act. The map is on file in the Office of the City
Clerk and by reference made part of this Report.

The boundary for the District is contiguous with the boundary of the City and defined as
the corresponding parcels Identified on the Yolo County Assessor's Map. The parcel
identification, lines, and dimensions of each parcel within the District are those lines and
dimensions shown on the Yolo County Assessor's Map for the year in which this Report
was prepared and by reference are incorporated and made part of this Report.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District A

45



WILLDAN

APPENDIX B — 2020/2021 ASSESSMENT ROLL

Parcel identification, for each lot or parcel within the District, shall be the parcel as shown
on the Yolo County Assessor's map for the year in which this Report is prepared.

A listing of parcels assessed within this District, along with the assessment amounts, is
included on the following pages. If any parcel submitted for collection is identified by the
County Auditor/Controller to be an invalid parcel number for the current fiscal year, a
corrected parcel number and/or new parcel numbers will be identified and resubmitted to
the County Auditor/Controller. The assessment amount to be levied and collected for the
resubmitted parcel or parcels shall be based on the method of apportionment and
assessment rate approved in this Report. Therefore, if a single parcel has changed to
multiple parcels, the assessment amount applied to each of the new parcels shall be
recalculated and applied according to the approved method of apportionment and
assessment rate rather than a proportionate share of the original assessment.

Non-assessable lots or parcels include areas of public streets and other roadways
(typically not assigned an APN by the County): dedicated public easements, open space
areas and rights-of-ways including public greenbeits and parkways; utility rights-of-ways;
common areas; landlocked parcels, small parcels vacated by the County, bifurcated lots,
and any other property that cannot be developed or has specific development restrictions.
These types of parcels are considered to receive little or no benefit from the improvements
and are therefore exempted from assessment.

Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City of Winters City-Wide Maintenance Assessment District

46



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-120-004-000

003-120-006-000

003-130-003-000

003-130-009-000

003-130-010-000

003-130-012-000

003-130-013-000

003-130-014-000

003-130-015-000

003-130-016-000

003-130-017-000

003-130-018-000

003-130-019-000

003-130-020-000

003-130-021-000

003-130-022-000

003-130-023-000

003-130-024-000

003-130-025-000

003-130-026-000

003-130-027-000

003-130-028-000

003-130-029-000

003-130-030-000

003-130-031-000

003-130-032-000

003-130-033-000

003-130-034-000

003-130-035-000

003-130-036-000

003-141-002-000

003-141-003-000

003-141-004-000

003-141-006-000

003-141-007-000

003-141-008-000

003-141-009-000

003-141-010-000

003-141-012-000

003-141-013-000

003-141-014-000

003-141-015-000

003-141-016-000

003-141-017-000

003-142-002-000

003-142-003-000

003-142-005-000

003-142-006-000

003-142-008-000

Situs Address

NO

511

600-602

410

415

407

408

406

404

402

616

614

403

405

407

409

411

413

414

412

410

408

409

411

413

415

508

403

518

406

316

314

310

302

301

303

307

309

304

308

611

607

311

313

318

310

304

510

305

SITUS AVAILABLE

MAIN ST

4TH ST

GRANT AVE

BAKER ST

EDWARDS ST

GRANT AVE

GRANT AVE

GRANT AVE

GRANT AVE

4TH ST

4TH ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

EDWARDS ST

EDWARDS ST

EDWARDS ST

EDWARDS ST

4TH ST

EDWARDS ST

4TH ST

BAKER ST

GRANT AVE

GRANT AVE

GRANT AVE

GRANT AVE

BAKER ST

BAKER ST #A

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

GRANT AVE

GRANT AVE

4TH ST

4TH ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

BAKER ST

3RD ST

EDWARDS ST

Land Use

Code

RES

COM

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

$82.50

26.24

165.00

247.50

165.00

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

165.00

82.50

82.50

82.50

165.00

165.00

165.00

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 1 of 46

47



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use

Code
Taxable Units Charge

003-142-009-000 307 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-142-010-000 309 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-142-011-000 311 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-142-013-000 303 EDWARDS ST RES 165.00

003-142-014-000 502 3RD ST RES 165.00

003-142-015-000 308 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-142-016-000 306 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-142-017-000 315 EDWARDS ST COM 1 26.24

003-143-001-000 315 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-002-000 415 4TH ST RES 247.50

003-143-003-000 310 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-004-000 308 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-005-000 306 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-006-000 304 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-008-000 408 3RD ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-009-000 400 3RD ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-011-000 309 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-012-000 311 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-013-000 313 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-014-000 418 3RD ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-015-000 410 3RD ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-016-000 307 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-143-017-000 305 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-144-001-000 215 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-144-003-000 210 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-144-004-000 208 GRANT AVE RES 12 990.00

003-144-005-000 610 2ND ST RES 1 82.50

003-144-007-000 203 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-144-008-000 205 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-144-011-000 212 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-144-012-000 214 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-144-013-000 209 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-144-014-000 602 2ND ST RES 165.00

003-144-015-000 600 2ND ST RES 165.00

003-146-001-000 215 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-002-000 218 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-003-000 216 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-0044JOO 214 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-005-000 212 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-007-000 204 A EDWARDS ST RES 165.00

003-146-011-000 207 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-012-000 209 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-013-000 211 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-014-000 210 EDWARDS ST RES 165.00

003-146-015-000 206 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-017-000 205 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-018-000 416-18 2ND ST RES 165.00

003-146-019-000 201 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-146-020-000 203 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 2 of 46

48



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Srtus Address

Land Use

Code
Taxable Units Charge

003-151-001-000 617 1ST ST RES 1 82,50

003-151-002-000 14 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-151-003-000 12 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-151-004-000 8 GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

003-151-008-000 611 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-151-013-000 601 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-151-014-000 605 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-151-021-000 11 BAKER ST RES 12 990.00

003-151-026-000 2 GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

003-151-028-000 600 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-151-029-000 606 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-152-001-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

003-152-002-000 108 GRANT AVE RES 10 825.00

003-152-003-000 104 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-152-004-000 618 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-152-005-000 612 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-152-006-000 600 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-152-007-000 105 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-152-008-000 109 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-152-009-000 111 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-152-010-000 113 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-152-011-000 115 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-152-012-000 117 BAKER ST RES 165.00

003-152-013-000 607 2ND ST RES 1 82.50

003-152-014-000 611 2ND ST RES 1 82.50

003-153-001-000 16 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-153-004-000 10 BAKER ST COM 1 26.24

003-153-005-000 8 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-153-006-000 510 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-153-007-000 504 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-153-008-000 3-5 EDWARDS ST COM 1 26.24

003-153-009-000 7 EDWARDS ST COM 1 26.24

003-153-010-000 9 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-153-011-000 15 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-153-015-000 511 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-153-017-000 12 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-153-018-000 14 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-154-001-000 517 2ND ST RES 1 82.50

003-154-002-000 114 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-154-003-000 110 BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-154-008-000 105 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-154-009-000 107 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-154-010-000 111 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-154-013-000 115 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-154-015-000 515 2ND ST RES 1 82.50

003-154-016-000 500 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-154-017-000 512 1ST ST COM 1 26.24

003-155-002-000 12 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-155-004-000 416 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

Fiscal Year 2020/21 3 of 46

49



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Srtus Address

Land Use
Taxable Units Charge

003-155-005-000 400 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-155-006-000 5 ABBEY ST COM 1 26.24

003-155-007-000 11 ABBEY ST RES 1 82,50

003-155-008-000 15 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-155-009-000 17 ABBEY ST COM 1 26.24

003-155-011-000 415 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-155-013-000 409 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-155-014-000 8 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-155-015-000 4 EDWARDS ST COM 1 26.24

003-156-003-000 106 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-004-000 104 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-005-000 418 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-007-000 105 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-009-000 119 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-010-000 121 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-011-000 123 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-013-000 417 2ND ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-014-000 415 2ND ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-015-000 108 EDWARDS ST RES 2 165.00

003-156-016-000 110 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-017-000 111 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-018-000 115 ABBEY ST RES 2 165.00

003-156-019-000 412 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-020-000 408 1ST ST RES 1 82.50

003-156-021-000 101 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-003-000 11 E BAKER ST COM 1 26.24

003-160-004-000 10 E GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-160-005-000 12 E GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-160-010-000 13 E EDWARDS ST COM 1 26.24

003-160-012-000 24 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-013-000 26 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-014-000 516 EAST ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-016-000 25 E EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-020-000 22 E EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-021-000 20 E EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-022-000 11 EABBEY ST COM 1 26.24

003-160-023-000 10 E EDWARDS ST COM 1 26.24

003-160-025-000 8 E EDWARDS ST COM 1 26.24

003-160-028-000 512 EAST ST RES 2 165.00

003-160-029-000 27 E EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-032-000 15 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-033-000 13 E BAKER ST COM 1 26.24

003-160-035-000 25 E BAKER ST RES 4 330.00

003-160-036-000 19 E ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-037-000 21 E ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-041-000 18 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-042-000 21 E EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-043-000 20 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-044-000 23 E EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 4 of 46

50



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Srtus Address

Land Use
Taxable Units Charge

003-160-047-000 7 E EDWARDS ST COM 1 26.24

003-160-048-000 11 E EDWARDS ST COM 1 26.24

003-160-053-000 7 E BAKER ST COM 1 26.24

003-160-054-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

003-160-055-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

003-160-058-000 29 E ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-060-000 23 E ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-160-062-000 613 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-160-063-000 517 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-160-064-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

003-160-065-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

003-160-066-000 28 E EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-001-000 437 ABBEY ST RES 2 165.00

003-171-002-000 438 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-003-000 436 EDWARDS ST RES 2 165.00

003-171-004-000 434 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-005-000 432 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-006-000 430 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-009-000 418 HAVEN AVE COM 1 26.24

003-171-010-000 419 HAVEN AVE RES 2 165.00

003-171-011-000 421 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-012-000 423 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-014-000 431 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-015-000 433 ABBEY ST RES 4 330.00

003-171-016-000 435 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-017-000 425 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-018-000 427 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-019-000 422 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-020-000 424 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-021-000 428 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-171-022-000 426 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-001-000 439 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-005-000 430 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-006-000 428 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-007-000 424 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-008-000 422 ABBEY ST RES 2 165.00

003-172-0094300 318 HAVEN ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-012-000 423 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-013-000 427 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-014-000 431 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-015-000 433 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-016-000 435 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-017-000 437 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-018-000 421 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-019-000 432 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-022-000 434 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-172-023-000 438 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-173-003-000 400 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-173-010-000 415 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 5 of 46

51



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

1  Number Situs Address
0

003-173-012-000 407 ABBEY ST RES

003-173-013-000 409 ABBEY ST RES

003-173-014-000 413 ABBEY ST RES

003-173-015-000 401 ABBEY ST RES

003-173-013-000 405 W ABBEY ST RES

003-173-019-000 410 EDWARDS ST RES

003-173-020-000 414 EDWARDS ST RES

003-173-021-000 412 EDWARDS ST RES

003-173-022-000 406 EDWARDS ST RES

003-173-023-000 403 ABBEY ST RES

003-173-024-000 404 EDWARDS ST RES

003-173-025-000 417 HAVEN AVE RES

003-173-026-000 416 EDWARDS ST RES

003-173-027-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES

003-173-028-000 411 ABBEY ST RES

003-175-002-000 410 MAIN ST RES

003-175-005-000 200 4TH ST RES

003-175-006-000 403 RUSSELL ST RES

003-175-007-000 405-407 RUSSELL ST RES

003-175-008-000 409 RUSSELL ST RES

003-175-009-000 406 MAIN ST RES

003-175-010-000 408 MAIN ST RES

003-175-012-000 412 MAIN ST RES

003-175-013-000 413 1/2 RUSSELL ST RES

003-175-014-000 413 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-061-000 205 EMERY ST RES

003-182-062-000 438 MAIN ST RES

003-182-063-000 436 MAIN ST RES

003-182-064-000 434 MAIN ST RES

003-182-065-000 424 MAIN ST RES

003-182-066-000 422 MAIN ST RES

003-182-067-000 418 MAIN ST RES

003-182-068-000 416 MAIN ST RES

003-182-069-000 414 MAIN ST RES

003-182-071-000 437 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-072-000 435 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-073-000 433 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-074-000 431 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-076-000 425 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-077-000 423 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-078-000 421 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-079-000 419 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-080-000 417 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-081-000 415 RUSSELL ST RES

003-182-082-000 430 MAIN ST RES

003-182-083-000 430 MAIN ST RES

003-182-084-000 428 MAIN ST RES

003-182-085-000 426 MAIN ST RES

003-182-088-000 427 RUSSELL ST RES

Taxable Units Charge

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

247.50

247.50

82.50

82.50

165.00

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 6 of 46

52



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roli

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-182-090-000

003-182-091-000

003-182-092-000

003-183-016-000

003-183-017-000

003-183-020-000

003-183-022-000

003-183-023-000

003-183-024-000

003-183-025-000

003-183-026-000

003-183-027-000

003-183-029-000

003-183-032-000

003-183-034-000

003-183-035-000

003-183-036-000

003-183-037-000

003-183-038-000

003-183-039-000

003-183-040-000

003-183-042-000

003-183-043-000

003-183-044-000

003-183-045-000

003-183-047-000

003-183-048-000

003-183-049-000

003-183-050-000

003-191-001-000

003-191-005-000

003-191-006-000

003-191-007-000

003-191-008-000

008-191-009-000

003-191-010-000

003-191-011-000

003-191-012-000

003-191-013-000

003-191-014-000

003-191-015-000

003-191-016-000

003-192-001-000

003-192-002-000

003-192-003-000

003-192-004-000

003-192-005-000

003-192-006-000

003-192-007-000

Srtus Address

429 RUSSELL ST

203 EMERY ST

439 RUSSELL ST

442 RUSSELL ST

444 RUSSELL ST

446 RUSSELL ST

434 RUSSELL ST

432 RUSSELL ST

430 RUSSELL ST

428 RUSSELL ST

426 RUSSELL ST

424 RUSSELL ST

440 RUSSELL ST

422 RUSSELL ST

420 RUSSELL ST

436 RUSSELL ST

438 RUSSELL ST

206 EMERY ST

204 EMERY ST

202 EMERY ST

445 RUSSELL ST

416 RUSSELL ST

418 RUSSELL ST

456 RUSSELL ST

454 RUSSELL BLVD

450 RUSSELL ST

447 RUSSELL ST

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

455 RUSSELL ST

311 MAIN ST

302 ABBEY ST

301 MAIN ST

303 MAIN ST

305 MAIN ST

307 MAIN ST

309 MAIN ST

310 ABBEY ST

312 ABBEY ST

308 ABBEY ST

306 ABBEY ST

316 ABBEY ST

314 ABBEY ST

201 4TH ST

310 MAIN ST

308 MAIN ST

306 MAIN ST

304 MAIN ST

302 MAIN ST

300 MAIN ST

Land Use

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

COM

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

COM

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

82,50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

165.00

247.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

165.00

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

26.24

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

26.24

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 7 of 46

53



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use
-  . Taxable Units Charge
Code ^

003-192-008-000 301 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-192-009-000 303 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-192-010-000 305 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-192-012-000 307 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-192-013-000 311 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-193-001-000 213 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-193-003-000 210 ABBEY ST RES 1  82.50

003-193-004-000 208 ABBEY ST RES 1  82.50

003-193-005-000 206 ABBEY ST RES 1  82.50

003-193-007-000 201 MAIN ST COM 1  26.24

003-193-008-000 205 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-193-009-000 209 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-193-010-000 214 ABBEY ST RES 2  165.00

003-193-011-000 212 ABBEY ST RES 1  82.50

003-193-012-000 310 2ND ST RES 2  165.00

003-193-013-000 204 ABBEY ST RES 1  82.50

003-194-001-000 211 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-194-002-000 212 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-194-003-000 210 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-194-004-000 208 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-194-005-000 206 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-194-006-000 204 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-194-007-000 226 2N0 ST RES 1  82.50

003-194-010-000 209 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-194-011-000 205 RUSSELL ST COM 1  26.24

003-201-001-000 116 ABBEY ST RES 2  165.00

003-201-002-000 110 ABBEY ST RES 1  82.50

003-201-008-000 107 MAIN ST COM 1  26.24

003-201-012-000 119 MAIN ST COM 1  26.24

003-201-013-000 311 2ND ST RES 1  82.50

003-201-015-000 111 MAIN ST COM 1  26.24

003-201-016-000 101 MAIN ST COM 1  26.24

003-201-017-000 106 ABBEY ST RES 1  82.50

003-202-002-000 112 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-202-003-000 110 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-202-004-000 108 MAIN ST COM 1  26.24

003-202-005-000 106 MAIN ST COM 1  26.24

003-202-006-000 100 MAIN ST COM 1  26.24

003-202-007-000 208 1ST ST RES 1  82.50

003-202-010-000 107 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-202-011-000 123 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-202-012-000 129 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-202-013-000 116 MAIN ST RES 2  165.00

003-202-014-000 114 MAIN ST RES 1  82.50

003-202-015-000 101 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-202-017-000 105 RUSSELL ST RES 1  82.50

003-203-001-000 48 MAIN ST COM 1  26.24

003-203-002-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1  26.24

003-203-003-000 211 1ST ST COM 1  26.24

Fiscal Year 2020/21 8 of 46

54



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use _ ^
_  . Taxable Units
Code

Charge

003-203-004-000 42 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-203-005-000 36 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-203-006-000 34 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-203-007-000 30 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-203-008-000 26 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-203-009-000 22 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-203-010-000 12 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-203-011-000 2-10 MAIN ST/210 RAILRO ST COM 1 26.24

003-203-012-000 200-208 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-203-013-000 7 RUSSELL ST RES 1 82.50

003-203-014-000 9 RUSSELL ST RES 1 82.50

003-203-015-000 11 RUSSELL ST RES 1 82.50

003-203-017-000 18 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-204-008-000 1 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-204-009-000 7-11 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-204-010-000 15 A & B MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-204-011-000 19 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-204-013-000 31 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-204-014-000 33 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-204-015-000 35 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-204-016-000 37 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-204-017-000 41-47 MAIN ST COM 1 26.24

003-204-022-000 12 ABBEY ST COM 1 26.24

003-221-001-000 11 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-221-002-000 14 E ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-221-003-000 16 E ABBEY ST RES 2 166.00

003-221-004-000 22 E ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-221-005-000 24 E ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-221-006-000 26 E ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-221-008-000 300 EAST ST RES 6 495.00

003-221-009-000 23 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-221-012-000 13 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-221-014-000 21 E MAIN ST RES 2 165.00

003-221-015-000 17 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-221-017-000 28 E ABBEY ST RES 7 577.50

003-222-003-000 107 ELLIOT ST RES 2 165.00

003-222-005-000 10 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-222-012-000 24 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-222-013-000 26 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-222-014-000 28 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-222-016-000 30 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-222-019-000 102 ELLIOT ST RES 7 577.50

003-222-020-000 101 ELLIOT ST RES 5 412.50

003-222-021-000 14 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-222-022-000 12 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-222-023-000 20 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-223-002-000 305 EAST ST RES 1 82.50

003-223-003-000 307 EAST ST RES 1 82.50

003-223-005-000 31 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 9 of 46

55



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-223-007-000

003-224-002-000

003-224-003-000

003-224-004-000

003-230-006-000

003-230-007-000

003-230-008-000

003-230-009-000

003-230-010-000

003-230-017-000

003-230-019-000

003-230-020-000

003-230-024-000

003-230-025-000

003-230-029-000

003-230-030-000

003-241-001-000

003-241-002-000

003-241-003-000

003-241-005-000

003-241-008-000

003-241-009-000

003-241-012-000

003-241-013-000

003-241-015-000

003-241-017-000

003-241-021-000

003-241-022-000

003-241-023-000

003-241-024-000

003-241-027-000

003-241-029-000

003-242-001-000

003-242-003-000

003-242-004-000

003-242-005-000

003-242-010-000

0O3-242-Q11-000

003-242-014-000

003-242-015-000

003-242-016-000

003-242-017-000

003-242-018-000

003-242-019-000

003-243-002-000

003-243-003-000

003-243-005-000

003-243-006-000

003-243-007-000

Situs Address

29 E MAIN ST

8 E ABBEY ST

5 & 7 E MAIN ST

9 E MAIN ST

106 3RD ST

104 3RD ST

102 3RD ST

312 RUSSELL ST

114 3RD ST

102 RIVERVIEWCT

118 3RD ST

116 3RD ST

120 LIWAI VILLAGE CT

116 LIWAI VILLAGE CT

112 LIWAI VILLAGE CT

108 LIWAI VILLAGE CT

101 3RD ST

105 3RD ST

107 3RD ST

206 RUSSELL ST

108 2ND ST

102 SECOND ST

100 WOLFSKILL ST

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

204 RUSSELL ST

200 WOLFSKILL ST

102 WOLFSKILL ST

210 RUSSELL ST

109 3RD ST

110 2ND ST

202 RUSSELL ST

105 2ND ST

115 2ND ST

124 RUSSELL ST

120 RUSSELL ST

100 FIRST ST

106 RUSSELL ST

104 RUSSELL ST

105 WOLFSKILL ST

118 1ST ST

110 1ST ST

117 2ND ST

109 WOLFSKILL ST

10 RUSSELL ST

8 RUSSELL ST

12 RUSSELL ST

14 RUSSELL ST

6 RUSSELL ST

Land Use

Code

RES

COM

COM

COM

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

COM

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

82.50

26.24

26.24

26.24

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

26.24

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

165,00

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

412.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

330.00

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

165.00

165.00

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 10 of 46

56



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use -
Taxable Units Charge

003-243-008-000 2 RUSSELL ST COM 1 26.24

003-271-002-000 802 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-271-008-000 804 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-271-009-000 800 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-271-011-000 900 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-271-012-000 902 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-271-013-000 302 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-014-000 300 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-015-000 304 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-016-000 306 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-017-000 308 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-018-000 310 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-019-000 312 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-020-000 314 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-021-000 315 PEACH PL RES 1 82.50

003-271-022-000 313 PEACH PL RES 1 82.50

003-271-023-000 311 PEACH PL RES 1 82.50

003-271-024-000 309 PEACH PL RES 1 82.50

003-271-025-000 307 PEACH PL RES 1 82.50

003-271-026-000 304 PEACH PL RES 1 82.50

003-271-027-000 306 PEACH PL RES 1 82.50

003-271-028-000 308 PEACH PL RES 1 82.50

003-271-029-000 310 PEACH PL RES 1 82.50

003-271-030-000 312 PEACH PL RES 1 82.50

003-271-031-000 803 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-032-000 319 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-033-000 315 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-034-000 311 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-035-000 307 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-271-036-000 303 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-003-000 301 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-004-000 303 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-005-000 305 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-006-000 307 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-007-000 309 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-008-000 311 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-009-000 313 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-010-000 315 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-011-000 317 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-012-000 910 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-013-000 908 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-014-000 906 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-015-000 904 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-016-000 902 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-017-000 900 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-018-000 804 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-019-000 802 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-272-020-000 800 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-273-001-000 213 ROSA AVE RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 11 of 46

57



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Lend Use
Taxable Units Charge

003-273-002-000 211 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-273-003-000 209 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-273-004-000 207 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-273-005-000 205 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-273-006-000 203 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-273-007-000 201 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-001-000 212 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-002-000 210 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-003-000 208 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-004-000 206 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-005-000 204 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-006-000 202 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-007-000 200 ROSA AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-008-000 902 MERMOD PL RES 1  82.50

003-274-009-000 203 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-010-000 205 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-011-000 207 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-012-000 209 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-013-000 211 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-274-014-000 213 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-275-001-000 905 MERMOD PL RES 1  82.50

003-275-002-000 907 MERMOD PL RES 1  82.50

003-275-003-000 909 MERMOD PL RES 1  82.50

003-275-004-000 1001 MERMOD PL RES 1  82.50

003-275-005-000 1003 MERMOD PL RES 1  82.50

003-275-006-000 903 MERMOD PL COM 1  26.24

003-275-007-000 901 MERMOD PL RES 1  82.50

003-275-008-000 805 MERMOD PL RES 1  82.50

003-275-009-000 803 MERMOD PL RES 1  82.50

003-275-010-000 113 ANDERSON AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-001-000 213 ANDERSON AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-002-000 212 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-003-000 210 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-004-000 208 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-005-000 206 LENIS AVE RES t  82.50

003-276-006-000 204 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-007-000 202 LENIS AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-008-000 806 MERMOD PL RES 1  82.50

003-276-009-000 201 ANDERSON AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-010-000 203 ANDERSON AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-011-000 205 ANDERSON AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-012-000 207 ANDERSON AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-013-000 209 ANDERSON AVE RES 1  82.50

003-276-014-000 211 ANDERSON AVE RES 1  82.50

003-281-007-000 718 HEMENWAY ST RES 1  82.50

003-281-008-000 716 HEMENWAY ST RES 1  82.50

003-281-009-000 714 HEMENWAY ST RES 1  82.50

003-281-010-000 712 HEMENWAY ST RES 1  82.50

003-281-011-000 710 HEMENWAY ST RES 1  82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 12 of 46

58



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roil

Assessor's Parcel

Nimiber
Situs Address

Land Use

Code
Taxable Units Charge

003-281-012-000 708 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-281-013-000 700 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-281-016-000 301 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-281-034-000 213 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-281-035-000 215 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-282-002-000 18 ANDERSON AVE RES 12 990.00

003-282-003-000 14 ANDERSON AVE RES 577.50

003-282-004-000 12 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-282-011-000 704 RAILROAD AVE RES 660.00

003-282-018-000 11 GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

003-282-021-000 10 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-282-022-000 722 RAILROAD AVE RES 1 82.50

003-282-024-000 715 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-282-025-000 3 GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

003-282-028-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 330.00

003-282-030-000 110 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-282-031-000 111 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-282-032-000 112 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-321-001-000 709 DUTTON ST COM 1 26.24

003-321-003-000 19 E GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-321-004-000 15 E GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-322-003-000 710 DUTTON ST COM 1 26.24

003-322-020-000 723 RAILROAD ST COM 1 26.24

003-322-022-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

003-322-024-000 723 RAILROAD ST COM 1 26.24

003-330-007-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

003-330-011-000 801 DUTTON ST RES 39 3,217.50

003-330-013-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

003-330-016-000 807 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-330-017-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

003-330-018-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

003-330-019-000 812 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-330-020-000 810 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-330-021-000 808 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-330-022-000 804 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-330-023-000 800 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-330-024-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

003-341-001-000 401 PEAR PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-002-000 403 PEAR PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-005-000 406 PEAR PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-006-000 404 PEAR PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-007-000 402 PEAR PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-008-000 724 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-341-009-000 720 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-341-010-000 716 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-341-011-000 403 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-012-000 405 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-013-000 407 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-014-000 409 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 13 of 46

59



city of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use _ _
^  . Taxable Units
Code

Charge

003-341-015-000 411 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-015-000 412 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-017-000 410 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-018-000 408 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-019-000 406 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-020-000 404 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-021-000 402 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-022-000 400 PLUM PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-023-000 401 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-024-000 403 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-025-000 405 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-026-000 407 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-027-000 409 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-028-000 411 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-029-000 412 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-3414)30-000 410 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-031-000 408 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-032-000 406 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-033-000 404 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-034-000 402 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-035-000 400 LUIS PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-036-000 401 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-341-037-000 403 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-341-038-000 405 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-341-039-000 407 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-341-040-000 409 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-341-041-000 411 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-341-042-000 413 GRANT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-341-044-000 407 PEAR PL RES 1 82.50

003-341-045-000 405 PEAR PL RES 1 82.50

003-342-010-000 719 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-011-000 721 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-012-000 723 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-015-000 717 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-016-000 715 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-017-000 713 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-018-000 711 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-019-000 709 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-020-000 707 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-021-000 705 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-022-000 703 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-023-000 701 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-342-025-000 725 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-350-002-000 807 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-350-003-000 803 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-350-004-000 711 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-350-005-000 709 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-350-017-000 121 E GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

003-350-018-000 111 E GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

Fiscal Year 2020/21 14 of 46

60



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use

Code
Taxable Unite Charge

003-350-019-000 115 E GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

003-350-020-000 101 E GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

003-350-021-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

003-360-001-000 844 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-360-002-000 842 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-360-010-000 1035 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-360-012-000 836 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-360-013-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

003-360-014-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

003-360-015-000 1029 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-360-016-000 1029 RAILROAD AVE COM 1 26.24

003-360-019-000 840 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-360-020-000 127 CARRION CT (PRIVAT CT RES 165.00

003-360-021-000 125 CARRION CT RES 1 82.50

003-360-022-000 126 CARRION CT (PRIVAT CT RES 1 82.50

003-360-023-000 128 CARRION CT (PRIVAT CT RES 1 82.50

003-360-027-000 955 RAILROAD AVE RES 74 6.105.00

003-370-006-000 400 MORGAN ST RES 38 3.135.00

003-370-023-000 509 EAST ST RES 1 82.50

003-370-024-000 507 EAST ST RES 1 82.50

003-370-025-000 505 EAST ST COM 1 26.24

003-370-026-000 511 EAST ST RES 1 82.50

003-370-027-000 180-188 E GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

003-370-032-000 405 EAST ST RES 1 82.50

003-370-033-000 403 EAST ST RES 1 82.50

003-370-034-000 116 E BAKER ST RES 44 3.630.00

003-370-038-000 110 E BAKER ST RES 34 2,805.00

003-370-039-000 501 EAST ST COM 1 26.24

003-370-042-000 176 E GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

003-370-044-000 168 E GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

003-380-001-000 127 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-002-000 123 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-003-000 119 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-004-000 115 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-005-000 111 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-006-000 107 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-007-000 103 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-008-000 100 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-009-000 104 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-010-000 108 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-011-000 112 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-012-000 116 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-013-000 120 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-014-000 124 WESTWOOD CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-015-000 316 RUSSELL ST RES 1 82.50

003-380-016-000 129 RIVERVIEW CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-017-000 125 RIVERVIEW CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-018-000 121 RIVERVIEW CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-019-000 117 RIVERVIEW CT RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 15 of 46

61



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use _
_  . Taxable Units
Code

Charge

003-380-020-000 113 RIVERVIEWCT RES 1 82.50

003-380-021-000 109 RIVERVIEW CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-022-000 105 RIVERVIEW CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-023-000 101 RIVERVIEWCT RES 1 82.50

003-380-024-000 102 RIVERVIEWCT RES 1 82.50

003-380-025-000 106 RIVERVIEWCT RES 1 82,50

003-380-026-000 110 RIVERVIEWCT RES 1 82.50

003-380-027-000 114 RIVERVIEWCT RES 1 82.50

003-380-028-000 118 RIVERVIEW CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-029-000 122 RIVERVIEW CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-030-000 126 RIVERVIEW CT RES 1 82.50

003-380-031-000 130 RIVERVIEWCT RES 1 82.50

003-391-001-000 790 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-391-002-000 786 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-391-003-000 782 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-391-004-000 778 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-391-006-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

003-392-001-000 720 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-392-002-000 777 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-392-003-000 781 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82,50

003-392-004-000 785 APRICOT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-392-005-000 320 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-392-006-000 788 HILL PL RES 1 82.50

003-392-007-000 784 HILL PL RES 1 82.50

003-392-008-000 780 HILL PL RES 1 82.50

003-392-009-000 776 HILL PL RES 1 82.50

003-392-010-000 775 HILL PL RES 1 82.50

003-392-011-000 779 HILL PL RES 1 82.50

003-392-012-000 783 HILL PL RES 1 82.50

003-392-013-000 787 HILL PL RES 1 82.50

003-392-014-000 734 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82,50

003-392-015-000 732 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-392-016-000 730 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-392-017-000 728 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-393-001-000 215 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-393-002-000 214 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-393-003-000 212 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-393-004-000 210 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-393-005-000 208 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-393-006-000 206 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-393-007-000 734 MERMOD PL RES 1 82.50

003-393-008-000 732 MERMOD PL RES 1 82.50

003-393-009-000 207 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-393-010-000 209 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-393-011-000 211 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-393-012-000 213 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-394-001-000 113 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-394-002-000 114 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

003-395-001-000 729 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 16 of 46

62



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use _
-  . Taxable Units
Code

Charge

003-395-002-000 212 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-395-003-000 210 MERMODRD RES 1 82.50

003-395-004-000 208 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-395-005-000 206 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-395-006-000 204 MERMODRD RES 1 82.50

003-395-007-000 202 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-395-008-000 200 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-395-009-000 114 MERMOD RD RES 1 82.50

003-401-001-000 450 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-401-002-000 454 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-401-003-000 458 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-401-004-000 469 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-401-005-000 463 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-401-006-000 459 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-401-007-000 455 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-401-008-000 451 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-001-000 468 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-402^D02-000 464 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-003-000 460 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-004-000 456 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

008402-005-000 500 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-006-000 502 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-007-000 504 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-008-000 506 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-009-000 508 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-010-000 510 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-011-000 512 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-012-000 514 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-013-000 516 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-014-000 518 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-402-015-000 400 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-402-016-000 402 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-402-017-000 404 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-402-018-000 406 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-402-019-000 408 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-402-020-000 410 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-402-021-000 412 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-402-022-000 414 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-402-023-000 416 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-402-024-000 418 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-403-001-000 508 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-403-002-000 504 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-403-003-000 500 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-403-004-000 488 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-403-005-000 484 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-403-006-000 480 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-403-007-000 476 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-403-008-000 472 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-403-009-000 501 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 17 of 46

63



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use ,
. . Taxable Units
Code

Charge

003-403-010-000 503 ABBEY ST RES 1 82,50

003-403-011-000 505 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-403-012-000 401 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-^03-013-000 403 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-403-014-000 405 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-403-015-000 407 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-403-016-000 409 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-403-017-000 411 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-403-018-000 413 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-403-019-000 415 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-403-020-000 417 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-403-022-000 512 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-403-023-000 419 DRY CREEK LN RES 1 82.50

003-403-024-000 516 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-001-000 450 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003^04-002-000 454 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-003-000 458 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-004-000 462 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-005-000 466 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-006-000 470 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-007-000 474 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-008-000 471 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-009-000 467 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003^04-010-000 463 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-011-000 459 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-012-000 455 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-404-013-000 451 ABBEY ST RES 1 82.50

003-405-001-000 451 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-405-002-000 455 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-405-003-000 459 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-405-004-000 463 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003^05-005-000 467 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-405-006-000 471 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-405-007-000 475 EDWARDS ST RES 1 82.50

003-405-008-000 507 MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-410-001-000 800 CARRION CIR RES 1 82.50

003-410-002-000 802 CARRION CIR RES 1 82.50

003-410-003-000 804 CARRION CIR RES 1 82.50

003-410-004-000 806 CARRION CIR RES 1 82.50

003-410-005-000 808 CARRION CIR RES 1 82.50

003-410-006-000 810 CARRION CIR RES 1 82.50

003-410-007-000 812 CARRION CIR RES 1 82.50

003-410-008-000 22 PRISCILLA CT RES 1 82.50

003-410-009-000 20 PRISCILLA CT RES 1 82.50

003-410-010-000 19 PRISCILLA CT RES 1 82.50

003-410-011-000 17 PRISCILLA CT RES 1 82.50

003-410-012-000 15 PRISCILLA CT RES 1 82.50

003-410-013-000 816 CARRION CIR RES 1 82.50

003-410-014-000 818 CARRION CIR RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 18 of 46

64



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-410-015-000

003-410-016-000

003-410-017-000

003-410-018-000

003-410-019-000

003-410-020-000

003-410-021-000

003-410-022-000

003-410-023-000

003-410-024-000

003-410-025-000

00^410-026-000

003-410-027-000

003-410-028-000

003-410-029-000

003-410-030-000

003-410-031-000

003-410-032-000

003-410-033-000

003-410-034-000

003-410-037-000

003-410-038-000

003-410-039-000

003-410-040-000

003-410-041-000

003-410-042-000

003-410-043-000

003-410-045-000

003-421-003-000

003-421-004-000

003-421-005-000

003-421-006-000

003-421-007-000

003-421-008-000

003-421-009-000

003-421-010-000

003-421-011-000

003-421-012-000

003-421-013-000

003-422-001-000

003-422-002-000

003-422-003-000

003-422-004-000

003-422-005-000

003-422-006-000

003-422-007-000

003-422-008-000

003-422-009-000

003-422-010-000

Situs Address

820 CARRION CIR

820 RAILROAD AVE

823 CARRION CIR

821 CARRION CIR

819 CARRION CIR

817 CARRION CIR

815 CARRION CIR

813 CARRION CIR

811 CARRION CIR

809 CARRION CIR

807 CARRION CIR

805 CARRION CIR

803 CARRION CIR

801 CARRION CIR

11 ANDERSON AVE

9 ANDERSON AVE

7 ANDERSON AVE

800 RAILROAD AVE

2 BETTY CT

4 BETTY CT

10 BETTY CT

9 BETTY CT

7 BETTY CT

5 BETTY CT

3 BETTY CT

1 BETTY CT

6 BETTY CT

8 BETTY CT

1000 HEMENWAY ST

1002 HEMENWAY ST

1004 HEMENWAY ST

1006 HEMENWAY ST

1008 HEMENWAY ST

1010 HEMENWAY ST

1012 HEMENWAY ST

1014 HEMENWAY ST

1016 HEMENWAY ST

1018 HEMENWAY ST

1020 HEMENWAY ST

1001 HEMENWAY ST

1003 HEMENWAY ST

1005 HEMENWAY ST

1007 HEMENWAY ST

1009 HEMENWAY ST

1011 HEMENWAY ST

1013 HEMENWAY ST

1015 HEMENWAY ST

1017 HEMENWAY ST

1019 HEMENWAY ST

Land Use

Code

RES

COM

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

82.50

26.24

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 19 of 46

65



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use _ ^
. ̂ Taxable Units
Code

Charge

003^22-011-000 1021 HEMENWAY ST RES 1 82.50

003-422-012-000 1204 ALMERIA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-422-013-000 1202 ALMERIA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-422-014-000 1200 ALMERIA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-422-015-000 1106 ALMERIA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-422-016-000 1104 ALMERIA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-422-017-000 1102 ALMERIA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-422-018-000 1100 ALMERIA AVE RES 1 82.50

003-422-019-000 206 ALMERIA PL RES 1 82.50

003-422-020-000 204 ALMERIA PL RES 1 82.50

003-422-021-000 202 ALMERIA PL RES 1 82.50

003-422-022-000 200 ALMERIA PL RES 1 82.50

003-423-001-000 204 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-002-000 202 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-003-000 200 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-004-000 112 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-005-000 110 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-006-000 108 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-0074)00 106 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-008-000 104 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-009-000 102 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-010-000 100 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-011-000 98 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-012-000 96 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

003-423-013-000 97 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003^23-014-000 99 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-423-015-000 101 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-423-016-000 103 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-423-017-000 105 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-423-018-000 107 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-423-019-000 109 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-423-020-000 111 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-423-021-000 113 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-423-022-000 201 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-423-023-000 203 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-423-024-000 205 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-424-001-000 204 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-424-002-000 202 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-424-003-000 200 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-424-004-000 114 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-424-005-000 112 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-424-006-000 110 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-424-007-000 108 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-424-008-000 106 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-424-009-000 104 MARTINEZ WAY RES 1 82.50

003-424-010-000 1104 MALAGA LN RES 1 82.50

003-424-011-000 1102 MALAGA LN RES 1 82.50

003-424-012-000 1100 MALAGA LN RES 1 82.50

003-424-013-000 103 ALMERIA PL RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 20 of 46

66



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use
Taxable Units Charge

003-424-014-000 105 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003-424-015-000 107 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003-424-016-000 109 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003-424-017-000 111 ALMERIA PL RES t  82.50

003-424-018-000 113 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003-424-019-000 201 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003-424-020-000 203 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003-424-021-000 205 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003^24-022-000 114 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003-424-023-000 112 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003-424-024-000 110 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003-424-025-000 108 ALMERIA PL RES 1  82.50

003-424-026-000 822 RAILROAD AVE RES 3  247.50

003-424-027-000 1101 MALAGA LN RES 1  82.50

003-424-028-000 1103 MALAGA LN RES 1  82.50

003-424-029-000 1105 MALAGA LN RES 1  82.50

003-430-008-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1  82.50

003-430-010-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1  26.24

003-430-011-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1  26.24

003-430-012-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1  82.50

003-430-015-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1  82.50

003-430-030-000 1003 TAYLOR ST RES 1  82.50

003-441-001-000 1001 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-002-000 1003 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-003-000 1005 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-004-000 1007 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-005-000 1009 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-006-000 1011 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003441-007-000 1013 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003441-008-000 1015 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-009-000 1017 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-010-000 1019 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-011-000 1021 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-012-000 1023 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003441-013-000 1025 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003^1.014-000 1027 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-015-000 1029 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-016-000 1031 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-017-000 1033 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-018-000 1035 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-019-000 1037 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-020-000 1039 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-441-021-000 901 VALLEY OAK DR RES 1  82.50

003-442-001-000 1000 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-442-002-000 1002 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003^2-003-000 1004 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-442-004-000 1006 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-442-005-000 1008 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

003-442-006-000 1010 ADAMS LN RES 1  82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 21 of 46

67



city of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-442-007-000

003-442-008-000

003-442-009-000

003-442-010-000

003-442-011-000

003-442-012-000

003-442-013-000

003-442-014-000

003-442-015-000

003-442-016-000

003-442-017-000

003-442-018-000

003-442-019-000

003-442-020-000

003-442-021-000

003-442-022-000

003-442-023-000

003-442-024-000

003-442-025-000

003-444-001-000

003-444-002-000

003-444-003-000

003-444-004-000

003-444-005-000

003-444-006-000

003-445-001-000

003^5-002-000

003-445-003-000

003-445-004-000

003-445-005-000

003^5-006-000

003-445-007-000

003-445-008-000

003-445-010-000

003-445-011-000

003-450-001-000

003-450-002-000

003-450-003-000

003-450-004-000

003-450-005-000

003-450-006-000

003-450-007-000

003-450-008-000

003-450-009-000

003^50-014-000

003-450-015-000

003-450-016-000

003-450-017-000

003-450-018-000

Situs Address

1012 ADAMS LN

1014 ADAMS LN

1016 ADAMS LN

1018 ADAMS LN

1020 ADAMS LN

1022 ADAMS LN

1024 ADAMS LN

1026 ADAMS LN

1028 ADAMS LN

1030 ADAMS LN

1032 ADAMS LN

1034 ADAMS LN

1036 ADAMS LN

805 VALLEY OAK DR

803 VALLEY OAK DR

801 VALLEY OAK DR

1133 MCARTHUR AVE

1129 MCARTHUR AVE

1125 MCARTHUR AVE

716 VALLEY OAK DR

714 VALLEY OAK DR

712 VALLEY OAK DR

710 VALLEY OAK DR

708 VALLEY OAK DR

706 VALLEY OAK DR

1124 MCARTHUR AVE

1128 MCARTHUR AVE

1132 MCARTHUR AVE

711 VALLEY OAK DR

709 VALLEY OAK DR

707 VALLEY OAK DR

705 VALLEY OAK DR

703 VALLEY OAK DR

701 VALLEY OAK DR

699 VALLEY OAK DR

101 QUAIL CT

103 QUAIL CT

105 QUAIL CT

107 QUAIL CT

108 QUAIL CT

106 QUAIL CT

104 QUAIL CT

102 QUAIL CT

100 QUAIL CT

1123 W GRANT AVE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

Land Use

Code

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

COM

COM

COM

COM

COM

Taxable Units Charge

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

26.24

26.24

26.24

26.24

26.24

Fiscal Year 2020/21 22 of 46

68



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use _ ^
_  . Taxable Units
Code

Charge

003-450-020-000 700 VALLEY OAK DR COM 1 26.24

003-460-001-000 1001 MCARTHURAVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-002-000 1005 MCARTHUR AVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-003-000 1009 MCARTHUR AVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-004-000 1015 MCARTHUR AVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-005-000 1017 MCARTHURAVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-006-000 1021 MCARTHURAVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-007-000 1025 MCARTHURAVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-008-000 1029 MCARTHURAVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-009-000 1101 MCARTHURAVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-010-000 1105 MCARTHURAVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-011-000 1109 MCARTHURAVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-012-000 1113 MCARTHUR AVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-013-000 1117 MCARTHUR AVE RES 1 82.50

003-460-014-000 1121 MCARTHURAVE RES 1 82.50

003-461-001-000 840 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-461-002-000 836 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-461-003-000 832 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-461-004-000 828 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-461-005-000 824 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-461-006-000 820 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-461-007-000 816 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-461-008-000 812 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-461-009-000 808 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-461-010-000 804 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-461-011-000 800 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-462-001-000 832 JEFFERSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-462-002-000 828 JEFFERSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-462-003-000 824 JEFFERSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-462-004-000 820 JEFFERSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-462-005-000 816 JEFFERSON ST RES 1 82.50

003462-006-000 812 JEFFERSON ST RES 1 82.50

003462-007-000 808 JEFFERSON ST RES 1 82.50

003^2-008-000 804 JEFFERSON ST RES 1 82.50

003462-009-000 800 JEFFERSON ST RES 1 82.50

003462-010-000 801 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003462-011-000 805 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-462-012-000 809 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003462-013-000 813 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003462-014-000 817 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003462-015-000 821 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-462-016-000 825 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-462-017-000 829 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003-462-0184)00 833 JACKSON ST RES 1 82.50

003463-001-000 824 LINCOLN ST RES 1 82.50

003463-002-000 820 LINCOLN ST RES 1 82.50

003463-003-000 816 LINCOLN ST RES 1 82.50

003463-004-000 812 LINCOLN ST RES 1 82.50

003463-005-000 808 LINCOLN ST RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 23 of 46

69



city of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-463-006-000

003-463-007-000

003-463-008-000

003-463-009-000

003-463-010-000

003-463-011-000

003-463-012-000

003-463-013-000

003-463-014-000

003-463-015-000

003-464-001-000

003-464-002-000

003-464-003-000

003-464-004-000

003-464-005-000

003-464-006-000

003-464-007-000

003-464-008-000

008464-009-000

003464-010-000

003464-011-000

003464-012-000

003464-013-000

003465-001-000

003465-002-000

003465-003-000

003-465-004-000

003-465-005-000

003-465-006-000

003465-007-000

003-465-008-000

003-465-009-000

003465-010-000

003465-011-000

003466-001-000

003466-002-000

003466-003-000

003466-004-000

003466-005-000

003-466-006-000

003466-007-000

003466-008-000

003-466-009-000

003466-010-000

003466-011-000

003466-012-000

003467-001-000

003471-001-000

003471-002-000

Situs Address

804 LINCOLN ST

800 LINCOLN ST

801 JEFFERSON ST

805 JEFFERSON ST

809 JEFFERSON ST

813 JEFFERSON ST

817 JEFFERSON ST

821 JEFFERSON ST

825 JEFFERSON ST

829 JEFFERSON ST

1104 WASHINGTON AVE

1100-2 WASHINGTON AVE

1024-26 WASHINGTON AVE

1020 WASHINGTON AVE

1016 WASHINGTON AVE

1012 WASHINGTON AVE

1008 WASHINGTON AVE

1004 WASHINGTON AVE

1000 WASHINGTON AVE

1108 WASHINGTON AVE

1112 WASHINGTON AVE

1116 WASHINGTON AVE

1120 WASHINGTON AVE

816 TAYLOR ST

812 TAYLOR ST

808 TAYLOR ST

804 TAYLOR ST

800 TAYLOR ST

801 LINCOLN ST

805 LINCOLN ST

809 LINCOLN ST

813 LINCOLN ST

817 LINCOLN ST

821 LINCOLN ST

711 TAYLOR ST

713 TAYLOR ST

717 TAYLOR ST

721 TAYLOR ST

801 TAYLOR ST

805 TAYLOR ST

809 TAYLOR ST

813 TAYLOR ST

817 TAYLOR ST

821 TAYLOR ST

901 TAYLOR ST

905 TAYLOR ST

803 W GRANT AVE

903 VALLEY OAK DR

905 VALLEY OAK DR

Land Use

Code

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units

66

Charge

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

165.00

165.00

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

5.445.00

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 24 of 46

70



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use _ ^
_  . Taxable Unite
Code

Charge

003^71-003-000 907 VALLEY OAK DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-004-000 1038 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-005-000 1036 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-006-000 1034 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-007-000 1032 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-008-000 1030 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-009-000 1028 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-010-000 1026 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-t71-011-000 1024 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-012-000 1022 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-013-000 1020 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-014-000 1018 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-015-000 1016 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-016-000 1014 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-017-000 1012 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-018-000 1010 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-019-000 1008 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-020-000 1006 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-021-000 1004 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-022-000 1002 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-471-023-000 1000 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-472-001-000 1040 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-472-002-000 1038 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-472-003-000 1036 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-472-004-000 1034 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-472-005-000 1032 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-472-006-000 1030 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-472-007-000 1028 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-472-008-000 1026 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-472-009-000 1027 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-472-010-000 1029 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-472-011-000 1031 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-472-012-000 1033 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-472-013-000 1035 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-472-014-000 1037 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-472-015-000 1039 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-472-016-000 1041 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-473-001-000 1040 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-473-002-000 1038 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-473-003-000 1036 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-473-004-000 1034 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-473-005-000 1032 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-473-006-000 1030 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-473-007-000 1028 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-473-008-000 1026 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-473-009-000 1027 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-473-010-000 1029 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-473-011-000 1031 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-473-012-000 1033 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

Fiscaf Year 2020/21 25 of 46

71



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use _ ^
- ̂  Taxable Units
Code

Charge

003-473-013-000 1035 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-173-014-000 1037 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-473-015-000 1039 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-473-016-000 1041 EISENHOWER WAY RES 1 82.50

003-474-002-000 1041 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-003-000 1039 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-004-000 1037 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-005-000 1035 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-006-000 1033 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-007-000 1031 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-008-000 1029 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-009-000 1027 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-010-000 1025 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-011-000 1023 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-012-000 1021 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-013-000 1019 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-014-000 1017 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-015-000 1015 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-016-000 1013 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-017-000 1011 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-018-000 1109 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-019-000 1107 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-020-000 1105 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-021-000 1103 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-022-000 1101 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-023-000 1007 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-026-000 1003 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-474-028-000 1001-05 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-475-001-000 1105 HOOVER ST RES 1 82.50

003-475-002-000 1103 HOOVER ST RES 1 82.50

003-475-003-000 1101 HOOVER ST RES 1 82.50

003-475-004-000 1007 HOOVER ST RES 1 82.50

003-475-005-000 1005 HOOVER ST RES 1 82.50

003-475-006-000 1003 HOOVER ST RES 1 82.50

003-475-007-000 1001 HOOVER ST RES 1 82.50

003-475-008-000 1017 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-475-009-000 1015 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-475-010-000 1013 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-475-011-000 1011 KENNEDY DR RES 1 82.50

003-475-012-000 1012 TAFT CT RES 2 165.00

003-475-013-000 1014 TAFT CT RES 1 82.50

003-475-014-000 1016 TAFT CT RES 1 82.50

003-475-015-000 1018 TAFT CT RES 1 82.50

003-475-016-000 1017 TAFT CT RES 1 82.50

003-475-017-000 1015 TAFT CT RES 1 82.50

003-175-018-000 1013 TAFT CT RES 1 82.50

003-475-019-000 1011 TAFTCT RES 1 82.50

003-175-020-000 1012 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-475-021-000 1014 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 26 of 46

72



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use

Code
Taxable Units Chvge

003-475-022-000 1016 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-475-023-000 1018 ROOSEVELT AVE RES 1 82.50

003-480-023-000 107 CASELLi GT RES 1 82.50

003-480-024-000 105 CASELLI or RES 1 82.50

003-480-025-000 103 CASELLI CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-026-000 101 CASELLI CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-027-000 110 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-028-000 108 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-029-000 106 EMAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-030-000 104 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-031-000 102 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-032-000 100 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003^80-033-000 40 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-034-000 38 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-035-000 36 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-036-000 34 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-037-000 100 CASELLI CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-038-000 102 CASELLI CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-040-000 107 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-041-000 105 EMAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-042-000 103 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-043-000 101 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-044-000 101 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-045-000 103 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003^80-046-000 105 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003-180-047-000 107 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-048-000 109 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-049-000 111 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-050-000 110 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-051-000 401 EAST ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-052-000 399 EAST ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-053-000 108 LAUREN CT RES 82.50

003-480-054-000 106 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-055-000 104 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-056-000 102 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-057-000 100 LAUREN CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-058-000 39 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-059-000 37 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-060-000 35 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-061-000 33 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

003-480-064-000 104 CASELLI CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-066-000 106 CASELLI CT RES 1 82.50

003-480-068-000 32 E MAIN ST RES 32 2.640.00

003-491-001-000 841 WALNUT LN RES 1 82.50

003-491-002-000 101 ORCHARD LN RES 1 82.50

003-491-003-000 103 ORCHARD LN RES 1 82.50

003-491-004-000 105 ORCHARD LN RES 1 82.50

003-491-005-000 107 ORCHARD LN RES 1 82.50

003-491-006-000 109 ORCHARD LN RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 27 of 46

73



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preiimlnary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-491-007-000

003-491-008-000

003-491-009-000

003-491-010-000

003^91-011-000

003^91-012-000

003-491-013-000

003-491-014-000

003-491-015-000

003-491-016-000

003-491-017-000

003-491-018-000

003-491-019-000

003-491-020-000

003-491-021-000

003-491-022-000

003-491-023-000

003^91-024-000

003-491-025-000

003-491-026-000

003-491-027-000

003-491-028-000

003-492-001-000

003-492-002-000

003-492-003-000

003-492-004-000

003-492-005-000

003-492-006-000

003-492-007-000

003-492-008-000

003^92-009-000

003-492-010-000

003-492-011-000

003-492-012-000

003-492-013-000

003-492-014-000

003-492-015-000

003-492-016-000

003-492-017-000

003-492-019-000

003-492-020-000

003-492-021-000

003492-022-000

003-492-023-000

003-492-024-000

003492-025-000

003492-026-000

003492-027-000

003492-028-000

Situs Address

111 ORCHARD LN

113 ORCHARD LN

115 ORCHARD LN

114 ORCHARD LN

112 ORCHARD LN

110 ORCHARD LN

108 ORCHARD LN

106 ORCHARD LN

104 ORCHARD LN

102 ORCHARD LN

100 ORCHARD LN

839 WALNUT LN

837 WALNUT LN

101 ALMOND DR

103 ALMOND DR

106 ALMOND DR

107 ALMOND DR

109 ALMOND DR

111 ALMOND DR

113 ALMOND DR

115 ALMOND DR

117 ALMOND DR

100 ALMOND DR

102 ALMOND DR

104 ALMOND DR

106 ALMOND DR

108 ALMOND DR

110 ALMOND DR

112 ALMOND DR

114 ALMOND DR

116 ALMOND DR

118 ALMOND DR

200 ALMOND DR

202 ALMOND DR

204 ALMOND DR

206 ALMOND DR

208 ALMOND DR

210 ALMOND DR

212 ALMOND DR

121 BROADVIEW LN

119 BROADVIEW LN

117 BROADVIEW LN

115 BROADVIEW LN

113 BROADVIEW LN

111 BROADVIEW LN

109 BROADVIEW LN

107 BROADVIEW LN

105 BROADVIEW LN

103 BROADVIEW LN

Land Use

Code

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

82.50

82.50

82,50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 28 of 46

74



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preiiminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use ^
Taxable Units Charge

003-492-029-000 101 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-030-000 100 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-031-000 102 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-032-000 104 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-033-000 106 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-034-000 108 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-035-000 110 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-036-000 112 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-4924)37-000 114 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-038-000 116 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-039-000 118 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-040-000 120 BROADVIEW LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-041-000 127 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-042-000 125 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-043-000 123 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-044-000 121 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-045-000 119 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-046-000 117 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-047-000 115 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-048-000 113 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-049-000 111 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-050-000 109 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-051-000 107 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-052-000 105 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-053-000 103 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-054-000 101 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-055-000 100 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-056-000 102 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-057-000 104 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-058-000 106 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-059-000 108 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-060-000 110 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-061-000 112 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-062-000 114 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-063-000 116 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-064-000 118 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-065-000 120 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-066-000 122 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-067-000 124 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-492-068-000 126 COLBY LN RES 1 82.50

003-501-001-000 1033 VILLAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

003-501-002-000 1031 VILLAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

003-501-003-000 1029 VILLAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

003-501-004-000 1027 VILLAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

003-501-005-000 1025 VILLAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

003-501-006-000 1023 VILLAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

003-501-007-000 1008 BERRYESSA CT RES 1 82.50

003-501-008-000 1010 BERRYESSA CT RES 1 82.50

003-501-009-000 1012 BERRYESSA CT RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 29 of 46

75



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preiiminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-501-010-000

003-501-011-000

003-501-012-000

003-501-013-000

003-501-014-000

003-501-015-000

003-501-016-000

003-501-017-000

003-501-018-000

003-501-019-000

003-501-020-000

003-501-021-000

003-501-022-000

003-501-023-000

003-501-024-000

003-501-025-000

003-501-026-000

003-501-027-000

003-501-028-000

003-501-029-000

003-501-030-000

003-501-031-000

003-501-032-000

003-501-033-000

003-501-034-000

003-501-035-000

003-501-036-000

003-501-037-000

003-502-001-000

003-502-002-000

003-502-003-000

003-502-004-000

003-502-005-000

003-502-006-000

003-502-007-000

003-502-008-000

003-502-009-000

003-502-01Q-000

003-502-011-000

003-502-012-000

003-503-001-000

003-503-002-000

003-503-003-000

003-503-004-000

003-503-005-000

003-503-006-000

003-503-007-000

003-503-008-000

003-503-009-000

Situs Address

1014 BERRYESSA CT

408 NIEMANN ST

406 NIEMANN ST

1016 BERRYESSA CT

404 NIEMANN ST

1015 BERRYESSA CT

1013 BERRYESSA CT

1011 BERRYESSA CT

1009 BERRYESSA CT

1008 HILLVIEW LN

1010 HILLVIEW LN

1012 HILLVIEW LN

1014 HILLVIEW LN

323 HILLVIEW LN

321 HILLVIEW LN

319 HILLVIEW LN

317 HILLVIEW LN

315 HILLVIEW LN

313 HILLVIEW LN

311 HILLVIEW LN

310 NIEMANN ST

312 NIEMANN ST

314 NIEMANN ST

316 NIEMANN ST

318 NIEMANN ST

320 NIEMANN ST

400 NIEMANN ST

402 NIEMANN ST

1009 HiaVIEW LN

1011 HILLVIEW LN

1013 HILLVIEW LN

316 HILLVIEW LN

314 HILLVIEW LN

312 HILLVIEW LN

1012 VILLAGE CIR

1010 VILLAGE CIR

1008 VILLAGE CIR

313 VILLAGE CIR

315 VILLAGE CIR

317 VILLAGE CIR

1032 VILLAGE CIR

1030 VILLAGE CIR

1028 VILLAGE CIR

1026 VILLAGE CIR

1024 VILLAGE CIR

1022 VILLAGE CIR

414 VILLAGE CIR

412 VILLAGE CIR

410 VILLAGE CIR

Land Use

Code

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 30 of 46

76



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-503-010-000

003-503-012-000

003-503-013-000

003-503-014-000

003-503-015-000

003-503-016-000

003-503-017-000

003-503-018-000

003-503-019-000

003-503-020-000

003-503-021-000

003-503-022-000

003-503-023-000

003-503-024-000

003-503-025-000

003-503-026-000

003-503-027-000

003-503-028-000

003-503-029-000

003-503-030-000

003-510-007-000

003-510-008-000

003-510-009-000

003-510-010-000

003-510-011-000

003-510-012-000

003-510-013-000

003-510-014-000

003-510-015-000

003-510-016-000

003-510-017-000

003-510-018-000

003-510-019-000

003-510-020-000

003-511-001-000

003-511-002-000

003-511-003-000

003-511-004-000

003-511-005-000

003-511-006-000

003-511-007-000

003-511-008-000

003-511-009-000

003-511-010-000

003-511-011-000

003-511-012-000

003-511-013-000

003-511-014-000

003-511-015-000

Situs Address

408 VILLAGE CIR

406 VILLAGE CIR

404 VILLAGE CIR

402 VILLAGE CIR

400 VILLAGE CIR

318 VILLAGE CIR

316 VILLAGE CIR

314 VILLAGE CIR

312 VILLAGE CIR

310 VILLAGE CIR

308 VILLAGE CIR

1005 VILLAGE CIR

1007 VILLAGE CIR

1009 VILAGE CIR

1011 VILAGECIR

1013 VILAGE CIR

1015 VILAGE CIR

1017 VILAGE CIR

1019 VILAGE CIR

1021 VILAGE CIR

718 LUPINE WAY

720 LUPINE WAY

722 LUPINE WAY

724 LUPINE WAY

726 LUPINE WAY

728 LUPINE WAY

730 LUPINE WAY

731 MAIN ST

729 MAIN ST

727 MAIN ST

725 MAIN ST

723 MAIN ST

721 MAIN ST

719 MAIN ST

743 MAIN ST

741 MAIN ST

739 MAIN ST

737 MAIN ST

735 MAIN ST

733 MAIN ST

732 FOXGLOVE CIR

734 FOXGLOVE CIR

736 FOXGLOVE CIR

738 FOXGLOVE CIR

713 FOXGLOVE CIR

711 FOXGLOVE CIR

709 FOXGLOVE CIR

707 FOXGLOVE CIR

620 FOXGLOVE CIR

Land Use

Code

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

82,50

82.50

82,50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 31 of 46

77



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-511-016-000

003-512-001-000

003-512-002-000

003-512-003-000

003-512-004-000

003-512-005-000

003-512-006-000

003-512-007-000

003-512-008-000

003-512-009-000

003-512-010-000

003-512-011-000

003-513-001-000

003-513-002-000

003-513-003-000

003-513-004-000

003-513-005-000

003-513-006-000

003-513-007-000

003-513-008-000

003-513-009-000

003-513-010-000

003-513-011-000

003-513-012-000

003-513-013-000

003-513-014-000

003-513-015-000

003-513-016-000

003-513-017-000

003-514-001-000

003-514-002-000

003-514-003-000

003-514-004-000

003-514-005-000

003-514-006-000

003-514-007-000

003-514-008-000

003-514-009-000

003-515-001-000

003-515-002-000

003-515-003-000

003-515-004-000

003-515-005-000

003-515-006-000

003-515-007-000

003-515-008-000

003-515-009-000

003-515-010-000

003-515-011-000

Situs Address

615 FOXGLOVE CIR

710 FOXGLOVE CIR

708 FOXGLOVE CIR

706 FOXGLOVE CIR

618 FOXGLOVE CIR

636 FOXGLOVE CIR

634 FOXGLOVE CIR

632 FOXGLOVE CIR

615 IVY LOOP

706 IVY LP

708 IVY LOOP

712 IVY LOOP

641 FOXGLOVE CIR

639 FOXGLOVE CIR

637 FOXGLOVE CIR

635 FOXGLOVE CIR

633 FOXGLOVE CIR

631 FOXGLOVE CIR

609 IVY LOOP

607 IVY LOOP

605 IVY LOOP

603 IVY LOOP

601 IVY LOOP

631 IVY LOOP

629 IVY LOOP

627 IVY LOOP

625 IVY LOOP

623 IVY LOOP

621 IVY LOOP

606 IVY LOOP

604 IVY LOOP

602 IVY LOOP

600 IVY LOOP

626 IVY LOOP

624 IVY LOOP

601 SNAPDRAGON CT

621 FICUS WAY

625 FICUS WAY

629 SNAPDRAGON DR

627 SNAPDRAGON DR

625 SNAPDRAGON DR

623 SNAPDRAGON DR

621 SNAPDRAGON DR

611 SNAPDRAGON DR

609 SNAPDRAGON DR

607 SNAPDRAGON DR

624 FICUS WAY

626 FICUS WAY

628 FICUS WAY

Land Use

Code

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

165.00

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82,50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 32 of 46

78



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-515-012-000

003-516-001-000

003-516-002-000

003-516-003-000

003-516-004-000

003-516-005-000

003-516-006-000

003-516-007-000

003-516-008-000

003-516-009-000

003-516-010-000

003-516-011-000

003-516-012-000

003-516-013-000

003-516-014-000

003-521-001-000

003-521-002-000

003-521-003-000

003-521-004-000

003-521-005-000

003-521-006-000

003-521-007-000

003-521-008-000

003-523-001-000

003-523-002-000

003-523-003-000

003-523-004-000

003-523-005-000

003-523-006-000

003-523-007-000

003-523-008-000

003-523-009-000

003-523-010-000

003-523-011-000

003-523-012-000

003-523-013-000

003-523-014-000

003-523-015-000

003-523-016-000

003-523-017-000

003-523-018-000

003-523-01&-000

003-523-020-000

003-523-021-000

003-524-001-000

003-524-002-000

003-524-003-000

003-524-004-000

003-524-005-000

Situs Address

630 FICUS WAY

727 LUPINE WAY

725 LUPINE WAY

723 LUPINE WAY

721 LUPINE WAY

719 LUPINE WAY

717 LUPINE WAY

620 SNAPDRAGON DR

622 SNAPDRAGON DR

624 SNAPDRAGON DR

626 SNAPDRAGON DR

628 SNAPDRAGON DR

630 SNAPDRAGON DR

632 SNAPDRAGON DR

729 LUPINE WAY

717 MAIN ST

715 MAIN ST

715 ASTER ST

713 ASTER ST

711 ASTER ST

709 ASTER ST

707 ASTER ST

716 LUPINE WAY

700 IVY LOOP

702 IVY LOOP

704 IVY CT

706 IVY CT

708 IVY CT

710 IVYCT

712 IVY CT

714 IVY CT

716 IVY CT

715 IVY CT

713 IVY CT

711 IVYCT

709 IVY CT

707 IVY CT

705 IVY CT

706 ASTER ST

708 ASTER ST

710 ASTER ST

712 ASTER ST

714 ASTER ST

716 ASTER ST

715 LUPINE WAY

713 LUPINE WAY

711 LUPINE WAY

709 LUPINE WAY

707 LUPINE WAY

Land Use

Code

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 33 of 46

79



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-524-006-000

003-524-007-000

003-524-008-000

003-524-009-000

003-524-010-000

003-524-011-000

003-524-012-000

003-524-018-000

003-524-014-000

003-524-015-000

003-524-016-000

003-524-017-000

003-524-018-000

003-524-019-000

003-531-001-000

003-531-002-000

003-531-008-000

003-531-004-000

003-531-005-000

003-531-006-000

003-531-007-000

003-531-008-000

003-531-009-000

003-531-010-000

003-532-001-000

003-532-002-000

003-532-003-000

003-532-004-000

003-532-005-000

003-532-006-000

003-532-007-000

003-532-008-000

003-532-009-000

003-532-010-000

003-532-011-000

003-532-012-000

003-532-013-000

003-532-014-000

003-532-015-000

003-532-016-000

003-532-017-000

003-532-018-000

003-533-001-000

003-533-002-000

003-533-003-000

003-533-004-000

003-533-005-000

003-533-006-000

003-533-007-000

Situs Address

705 LUPINE WAY

618 SNAPDRAGON DR

616 SNAPDRAGON DR

614 SNAPDRAGON DR

612 SNAPDRAGON DR

610 SNAPDRAGON DR

608 SNAPDRAGON DR

606 SNAPDRAGON DR

604 SNAPDRAGON CT

602 SNAPDRAGON CT

600 SNAPDRAGON CT

620 IVY LOOP

622 IVY LOOP

415 GRANT AVE

940 VASEY ST

941 IRELAND ST

943 IRELAND ST

945 IRELAND ST

947 IRELAND ST

949 IRELAND ST

951 IRELAND ST

953 IRELAND ST

955 IRELAND ST

957 IRELAND ST

940 IRELAND ST

942 IRELAND ST

944 IRELAND ST

946 IRELAND ST

948 IRELAND ST

950 IRELAND ST

952 IRELAND ST

954 IRELAND ST

956 IRELAND ST

957 POTTER ST

955 POTTER ST

953 POTTER ST

951 POTTER ST

949 POTTER ST

947 POTTER ST

945 POTTER ST

943 POTTER ST

941 POTTER ST

940 POTTER ST

942 POTTER ST

944 POTTER ST

946 POTTER ST

948 POTTER ST

950 POTTER ST

952 POTTER ST

Land Um

Code

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

COM

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

32.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

26.24

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 34 of 46

80



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number

003-533-008-000

003-533-009-000

003-533-010-000

003-533-011-000

003-533-012-000

003-533-013-000

003-533-014-000

003-533-015-000

003-533-016-000

003-533-017-000

003-533-018-000

003-534-001-000

003-534-002-000

003-534-003-000

003-534-004-000

003-534-005-000

003-534-006-000

003-534-007-000

003-534-008-000

003-534-009-000

003-534-010-000

003-534-011-000

003-534-012-000

003-534-013-000

003-534-014-000

003-536-001-000

003-536-002-000

003-536-003-000

003-536-004-000

003-536-005-000

003-536-006-000

003-536-007-000

003-536-008-000

003-536-009-000

003-536-010-000

003-536-011-000

030-210-004-000

030-220-008-000

030-220-009-000

030-220-010-000

030-220-027-000

030-220-034-000

030-220-035-000

030-220-060-000

030-220-062-000

030-220-065-000

030-220-066-000

030-220-067-000

030-361-004-000

Situs Address

954 POTTER ST

956 POTTER ST

957 KENNEDY DR

955 KENNEDY DR

953 KENNEDY DR

951 KENNEDY DR

949 KENNEDY DR

947 KENNEDY DR

945 KENNEDY DR

943 KENNEDY DR

941 KENNEDY DR

936 KENNEDY DR

934 KENNEDY DR

932 KENNEDY DR

930 KENNEDY DR

928 KENNEDY DR

926 KENNEDY DR

924 KENNEDY DR

922 KENNEDY DR

920 KENNEDY DR

918 KENNEDY DR

916 KENNEDY DR

914 KENNEDY DR

912 KENNEDY DR

910 KENNEDY DR

724 W MAIN ST

722 W MAIN ST

720 W MAIN ST

718 W MAIN ST

716 W MAIN ST

714 W MAIN ST

712 WMAIN ST

710 W MAIN ST

708 W MAIN ST

706 W MAIN ST

704 W MAIN ST

1050 RAILROAD AVE

111 NIEMANN ST

105 NIEMANN ST

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

435 ANDERSON AVE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

NO SITUS AVAILABLE

1204 VALLEY OAK DR

Land Use

Code

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

COM

RES

COM

COM

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

RES

Taxable Units Charge

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

26.24

82.50

26.24

26.24

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 35 of 46

81



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

1 Assessor's Parcel
1  Number Situs Address

Land Use
Taxable Units Chwgt

030-361-005-000 1202 VALLEY OAKDR RES 32.50

030-361-006-000 1200 VALLEY OAK DR RES 1 82.50

030-361-007-000 503 DORSET CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-008-000 505 DORSET CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-009-000 508 DORSET CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-010-000 506 DORSET CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-011-000 504 DORSET CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-012-000 502 DORSET CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-013-000 500 DORSET CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-014-000 1104 VALLEY OAK DR RES 1 82.50

030-361-015-000 1102 VALLEY OAK DR RES 1 82.50

030-361-016-000 1100 VALLEY OAK DR RES 1 82.50

030-361-017-000 401 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-361-018-000 403 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-361-019-000 405 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-361-020-000 407 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-361-021-000 409 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-361-022-000 411 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-361-023-000 413 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-361-024-000 415 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-361-025-000 417 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-361-026-000 1005 SUFFOLK CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-028-000 1010 SUFFOLK CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-029-000 1008 SUFFOLK CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-030-000 1006 SUFFOLK CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-031-000 1004 SUFFOLK CT RES 1 82.50

030-361-036-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

030-361-037-000 1206 VALLEY OAK DR RES 1 82.50

030-362-001-000 404 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-362-002-000 402 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-362-003-000 400 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-371-001-000 201 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-002-000 203 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-003-000 205 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-004-000 207 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-005-000 209 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-006-000 211 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-007-000 803 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-008-000 805 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-009-000 807 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-010-000 901 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-011-000 903 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-012-000 905 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-013-000 907 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-371-014-000 410 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-371-015-000 408 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-371-016-000 406 COLUMBIA WAY RES 1 82.50

030-371-017-000 301 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 82.50

030-371-018-000 303 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 36 of 46

82



City of Winters

City-Wide
Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Numtwr
Situs Address

Larnl Use _ .. ,. ̂
code Units Chaege

030-371-019-000 305 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 32.50

030-371-020-000 307 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 82.50

030-371-021-000 309 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 82.50

030-371-022-000 311 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 82.50

030-371-023-000 308 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 82.50

030-371-024-000 306 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 82.50

030-371-025-000 304 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 82.50

030-371-026-000 302 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 82.50

030-371-027-000 300 HAMPSHIRE CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-001-000 1002 SUFFOLK CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-002-000 1000 SUFFOLK CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-003-000 906 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-004-000 904 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-005-000 902 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-006-000 900 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-007-000 810 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-008-000 808 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-009-000 806 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-010-000 804 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-011-000 802 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-012-000 800 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-013-000 212 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-014-000 210 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-015-000 208 SUFFOLK PL RES 1 82.50

030-372-016-000 902 SOUTHDOWN CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-017-000 904 SOUTHDOWN CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-018-000 906 SOUTHDOWN CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-019-000 908 SOUTHDOWN CT RES ^ 82.50

030-372-020-000 910 SOUTHDOWN CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-021-000 909 SOUTHDOWN CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-022-000 907 SOUTHDOWN CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-023-000 905 SOUTHDOWN CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-024-000 903 SOUTHDOWN CT RES 1 82.50

030-372-025-000 901 SOUTHDOWN CT RES 1 82.50

030-381-001-000 410 MOODY SLOUGH RD RES 1 82.50

030-381-002-000 401 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-381-003-000 403 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-381-004-000 405 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82,50

030-381-005-000 407 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-381-006-000 409 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-381-007-000 1108 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-381-010-000 1102 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-381-011-000 1100 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-381-013-000 1104 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-381-015-000 1106 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-382-001-000 402 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-382-002-000 404 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-382-003-000 406 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

030-382-004-000 408 GRIFFIN WAY RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 37 of 46

83



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Auessor's Parcel

Mumber
Situa Addrtss

Land Uso
"  Taxable Units

Code
Chwge

030-382-005-000 409 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

030-382-006-000 407 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

030-382-007-000 405 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

030-382-008-000 403 NIEMANN ST RES 1 82.50

030-391-001-000 443 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-391-002-000 439 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 32.50

030-391-003-000 435 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-391-004-000 431 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-391-005-000 427 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-391-006-000 423 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-391-007-000 419 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-391-010-000 410 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

030-391-011-000 414 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

030-391-012-000 418 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

030-391-013-000 422 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

030-391-014-000 426 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

030-391-015-000 430 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

030-391-016-000 434 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

030-391-017-000 438 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

030-391-018-000 442 ANDERSON AVE RES 1 82.50

030-391-019-000 415 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-391-021-000 411 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-001-000 474 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-002-000 470 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-003-000 466 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-004-000 462 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-005-000 458 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-006-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

030-392-007-000 430 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-008-000 426 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-009-000 422 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-010-000 418 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-011-000 414 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-012-000 410 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-392-013-000 408 COTTAGE CIR RES 1 82.50

030-401-001-000 779 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-401-002-000 777 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-401-003-000 775 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-401-004-000 773 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-401-005-000 771 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-401-006-000 769 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-401-007-000 767 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-401-008-000 765 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-402-009-000 763 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-402-010-000 761 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-402-011-000 759 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-402-012-000 757 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-402-013-000 755 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-402-014-000 753 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 38 of 46

84



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
SKus Address

Land Use
_  . Taxable Units Charge
Code ^

030-402-015-000 751 W MAIN ST RES 1 82,50

030-402-016-000 749 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-001-000 806 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-002-000 802 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-003-000 798 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-004-000 794 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-005-000 790 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-006-000 786 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-007-000 782 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030403-009-000 774 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-010-000 770 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-011-000 766 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-012-000 762 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-013-000 758 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-014-000 754 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-403-015-000 750 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-404-001-000 1102 CHAPMAN ST RES 1 82.50

030-404-002-000 831 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030-404-003-000 827 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030-404-004-000 823 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030-404-005-000 819 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030404-006-000 815 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030-404-007-000 811 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030404-008-000 807 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030404-010-000 795 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030-404-011-000 791 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030-404-012-000 787 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030-404-013-000 783 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030-404-014-000 779 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030404-015-000 775 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030-404-016-000 771 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030-405-001-000 942 VASEY ST RES 1 82.50

030-406-002-000 944 VASEY ST RES 1 82.50

030405-003-000 946 VASEY ST RES 1 82.50

030405-004-000 948 VASEY ST RES 1 82.50

030405-005-000 950 VASEY ST RES 1 82.50

030406-001-000 832 GRAF WAY RES 1 82.50

030406-002-000 981 DEGENER ST RES 1 82.50

030407-004-000 963 CULTON ST RES 1 82.50

030408-005-000 962 CULTON ST RES 1 82.50

030408-006-000 949 VASEY ST RES 1 82.50

030411-001-000 890 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030411-002-000 886 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030411-003-000 882 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030411-004-000 878 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030411-005-000 874 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030411-006-000 870 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030411-007-000 866 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030411-008-000 862 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 39 of 46

85



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use _ .
_  . Taxable Unrts
Code

Charge

030-411-009-000 858 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-411-010-000 854 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-411-011-000 923 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-411-012-000 927 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-411-013-000 931 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-411-014-000 935 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-411-015-000 939 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-411-016-000 943 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-411-017-000 947 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-411-018-000 951 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-411-019-000 955 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-411-020-000 959 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-411-021-000 963 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-412-001-000 850 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-002-000 846 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-003-000 842 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-004-000 838 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-005-000 834 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-006-000 830 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-007-000 826 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-008-000 822 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-009-000 818 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-012-000 1103 CHAPMAN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-013-000 1105 CHAPMAN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-014-000 887 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-412-015-000 891 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-412-016-000 895 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-412-017-000 899 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-018-000 826 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-412-019-000 907 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-412-020-000 911 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-413-001-000 814 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-413-002-000 810 W MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

030-414-001-000 912 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-414-002-000 910 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-414-003-000 908 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-414-004-000 906 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-414-005-000 1123 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-414-006-000 1125 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-414-007-000 1127 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-414-008-000 1129 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

03CM15-001-000 904 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-415-002-000 902 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-415-003-000 900 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-415-004-000 898 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-415-005-000 896 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-415-006-000 894 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-415-007-000 892 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-415-008-000 890 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 40 of 46

86



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

AsMssor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use _
^ ̂  Taxable Unrts
Code

Charge

030-415-009-000 aaa wyatt ln RES 1 82.50

03CM15-010-000 886 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-415-011-000 884 WYATT LN RES 1 82.50

030-415-012-000 1109 CHAPMAN ST RES 1 82.50

030-415-013-000 1101 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-415-014-000 1103 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

03(M15-015-000 1105 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-415-016-000 1107 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-415-017-000 1109 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-415-018-000 1111 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-415-019-000 1113 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-415-020-000 1115 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-415-021-000 1117 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-415-022-000 1119 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

030-415-023-000 1121 TAYLOR ST RES 1 82.50

038-050-013-000 27600 OR 90 COM 1 26.24

038-050-019-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-050-021-000 T8N T8NR1WP0R SEC 22 COM 1 26.24

038-050-027-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

038-050-029-000 901 E GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

038-050-051-000 27710 CR 90 COM 1 26.24

038-050-052-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

038-050-072-000 27852 CR 90 COM 1 26.24

038-050-073-000 27990 CR 90 COM 1 26.24

038-050-076-000 703 MATSUMOTO LN COM 1 26.24

038-050-077-000 701 MATSUMOTO LN COM 1 26.24

038-050-078-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

038-050-080-000 999 E GRANT AVE COM 1 26.24

038-050-081-000 700 MATSUMOTO LN COM 1 26.24

038-050-082-000 702 MATSUMOTO LN COM 1 26.24

038-050-083-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

038-050-089-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

038-070-035-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-070-041-000 112 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-070-043-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-070-046-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE COM 1 26.24

038-170-002-000 412 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-170-003-000 408 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-170-004-000 404 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-170-005-000 400 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-170-006-000 216 BLUE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-170-007-000 220 BLUE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-170-008-000 312 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-170-009-000 308 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-170-010-000 304 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-170-011-000 300 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-170-012-000 221 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-170-013-000 217 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-170-014-000 224 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 41 of 46

87



city of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Niffnber
Situs Address

Land Use
"  Taxable Units

Code
Charge

038-170-015-000 212 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-170-016-000 208 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-170-017-000 204 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-170-018-000 200 E MAIN ST RES 1 82,50

038-170-019-000 225 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-001-000 201 MADRONE CT RES 1 82.50

038-180-002-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-180-003-000 209 MADRONE CT RES 1 82.50

038-180-004-000 208 MADRONE CT RES 1 82.50

038-180-007-000 201 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-008-000 205 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-009-000 209 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-010-000 213 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-011-000 217 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-012-000 221 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-013-000 220 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-014-000 216 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-015-000 212 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-016-000 208 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-017-000 204 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-018-000 200 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-019-000 301 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-020-000 305 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-021 000 205 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-022-000 209 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-023-000 213 TOYON LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-024-000 212 BLUE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-025-000 208 BLUE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-026-000 204 BLUE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-027-000 309 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-028-000 313 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-029-000 401 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-030-000 405 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-031-000 205 BLUE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-032-000 209 BLUE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-033-000 208 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-034-000 204 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-180-035-000 409 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-036-000 413 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-037-000 412 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-038-000 408 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-039-000 404 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-040-000 400 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-041-000 316 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-042-000 312 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-043-000 308 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-044-000 304 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-045-000 300 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-180-047-000 200 MADRONE CT RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 42 of 46

88



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Psrcsl

Number
Situs Address Taxable Units Cbarge

vooe

038-190-002-000 421 E MAIN ST RES 1 S2.50

038-190-003-000 417 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-004-000 413 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-005-000 409 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-006-000 405 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-007-000 401 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-008-000 309 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-009-000 305 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-010-000 301 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-011-000 213 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-012-000 211 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-013-000 209 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-014-000 207 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-015-000 205 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-016-000 203 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-017-000 201 E MAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-018-000 200 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-019-000 204 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-020-000 208 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-021-000 212 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-022-000 216 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-023-000 220 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-024-000 224 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-025-000 300 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-026-000 304 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-027-000 308 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-028-000 312 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-029-000 316 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-030-000 320 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-031-000 400 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-032-000 404 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-035-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-190-036-000 309 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-037-000 308 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-038-000 304 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-039-000 300 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-040-000 220 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-041-000 216 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-042-000 212 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-043-000 208 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-044-000 204 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-045-000 200 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-190-046-000 201 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-047-000 205 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-048-000 209 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-049-000 213 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-050-000 217 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-051-000 221 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-052-000 225 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 43 of 46

89



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Adcfress

Land Use _
Taxable Units Charge

038-19C-053-000 301 V/HITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-054-000 305 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-190-056-000 408 WHITE OAK LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-001-000 220 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-002-000 613 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-201-003-000 609 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-201-004-000 605 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-201-005-000 601 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-201-006-000 221 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-007-000 225 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-008-000 229 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-009-000 233 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-010-000 237 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-011-000 241 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-012-000 245 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-013-000 249 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-014-000 248 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-015-000 244 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-016-000 240 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-017-000 236 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-018-000 232 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-019-000 228 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-201-020-000 224 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-202-001-000 600 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-202-002-000 604 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-202-003-000 608 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-202-004-000 612 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-202-005-000 208 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-202-006-000 204 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-202-007-000 200 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-202-008-000 196 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-202-009-000 605 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-202-010-000 601 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-202-011-000 197 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-202-012-000 201 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-202-013-000 205 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-202-014-000 209 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-001-000 245 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-002-000 241 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-003-000 237 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-004-000 233 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-005-000 229 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-006-000 225 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-007-000 221 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-008-000 217 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-009-000 213 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-010-000 209 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-011-000 205 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-012-000 201 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 44 of 46

90



city of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

Assessor's Parcel

Number
Situs Address

Land Use
Taxable Units

Code
Charge

038-203-013-000 197 WILD ROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-014-000 193 WILDROSE LN RES 1 82.50

038-203-015-000 616 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-203-016-000 612 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-203-017-000 608 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-203-019-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-203-020-000 512 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-203-021-000 508 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-203-022-000 504 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-203-023-000 500 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-204-001-000 513 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-204-002-000 509 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-204-003-000 505 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-204-004-000 501 CREEKSIDE WAY RES 1 82.50

038-204-005-000 205 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-204-006-000 204 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-204-007-000 208 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-204-008-000 209 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-204-009-000 500 MAN2ANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-204-010-000 504 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-204-011-000 508 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-204-012-000 512 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-205-001-000 220 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-002-000 224 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-003-000 228 RED BUD LN RES 1 82,50

038-205-004-000 232 RED BUD LN RES 1 82,50

038-205-005-000 236 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-006-000 240 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-007-000 244 RED BUD LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-009-000 245 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-010-000 241 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-011-000 237 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-012-000 233 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-013-000 229 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-014-000 225 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-015-000 221 MAPLE LN RES 1 82.50

038-205-016-000 501 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-205-017-000 505 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-205-018-000 509 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-205-019-000 513 MANZANITA WAY RES 1 82.50

038-210-001-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-210-002-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-210-004-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-210-005-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-210-006-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-210-007-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-210-008-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-210-009-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

038-210-010-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 82.50

Fiscal Year 2020/21 45 of 46

91



City of Winters

City-Wide

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Assessment Roll

I Assessor's Parcel
1  Number Situs Address

Land Use

Code
Taxable Units Charge

038-210-011-000 NO SITUS AVAILABLE RES 1 32.50

038-220-008-000 504 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-220-009-000 500 E BAKER ST RES 1 82.50

038-220-010-000 516 EMAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-220-011-000 512 EMAIN ST RES 1 82.50

038-220-012-000 508 E MAIN ST RES 1 32,50

910-001-425-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##47 RES 1 82.50

910-004-496-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##50 RES 1 82,50

910-004-497-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##45 RES 1 82,50

910-004-498-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##37 RES 1 82,50

910-004-499-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##80 RES 1 82,50

910-004-500-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##52 RES 1 82.50

910-004-501-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##27 RES 1 82,50

910-004-502-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##10 RES 1 82,50

910-004-503-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##4 RES 1 82,50

910-004-504-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##8 RES 1 82,50

910-004-505-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##54 RES 1 82.50

910-004-506-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##60 RES 1 82,50

910-004-507-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##66 RES 1 82,50

910-004-508-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##69 RES 1 82,50

910-004-509-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##55 RES 1 82.50

910-004-510-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##65 RES 1 82,50

910-004-511-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##75 RES 1 82,50

910-004-512-000 803 W GRANT AVE ##81 RES 1 82,50

Totals

Parcel Count

2,692 $214,944.98

2,229

Fiscal Year 2020/21 46 of 46

92



CITY OF

c e/ tJ i n t f/

Est. 1875

TOi

DATE:

THROUGH:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Councilmemb^rs

June 2, 2020

John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manage

Shelly A. Gunby, Director of Financial Management

Budget Workshop

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the City Council hold a workshop to discuss the development of the budget for
the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 provide input and direction to staff so that the budget can be completed
and presented for adoption on June 16, 2020.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Winters is required to adopt a budget for July 1,2020 through June 30, 2021 prior to
July 1, 2020. Staff has been working with consultants, the League of California Cities and various
professional organizations to gain as much information about the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic, the stay at home order issued by the State of California and the resulting economic
impact of having businesses shuttered for almost 3 month.

Because labor costs are the largest part of our general fund budget, management has met with all
employee groups and requested all groups agree to the following concessions:

1. Agree to reduce base pay to per the salary schedule effective June 2019, essentially asked to
agree to a 5% pay-cut

2. Agree to freeze wages at the June 2019 salary schedule, therefore foregoing the previously
agreed upon 2.5% pay increase effective July 1,2020.

3. Agree to freeze all merit increases for the fiscal year 20-21.
4. Agree to meet with management in February 2021 to review the financial situation of the

city and determine any changes in pay structure that may be required or that may be
returned to the employees.

93



At this point, all employee groups have returned counteroffers to the City for meeting the
reduction in employee cost necessary to help the city balance the 20-21 budget. Management is
working on reviewing all the counter proposals, however, at this point, management is confident
that wc can come to agreements with each group that will avoid laying off any employees.

Staff will present a power point presentation that will include the following topics for discussion:
1. Discussion of the revenue sources for the General Fund, how they were arrived at and

potential vulnerabilities.
2. Discussion of the impact of the reduced revenues on the services the city can provide to the

citizens of the City of Winters during the budget year.
3. Expenditure reductions other than those requested from employees.
4. Brief discussion on what the city can expect in the next 3-5 years, based on information

from consultants, the League of California Cities, and other professional groups.

HSCAL IMPACT:

None by this action

'attachments

94



CITY OF

t fi e r/

Est. 15j75

CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Council Members

June 2, 2020

TO:

DATE:

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manage

PROM: Ethan Walsh, City Attorney

Tracy S. Jensen, City Clerk

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Certificate of Sufficiency for the Initiative Petition Amending the
City of Winters General Plan to Establish an Urban Growth Boundary and
Request for Further Direction from City Council Pursuant to Elections Code 9215

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the City Council (1) receive, file and accept the Certificate of Sufficiency of
Initiative Petition and (2) either (a) Direct Staff to return within ten (10) days of this regular meeting
so that the City Council can adopt the Initiative Measure without alteration; (b) adopt the attached
resolution placing the Initiative Measure on the ballot for the next scheduled municipal election in
March 2022; or, (c) direct City staff to prepare a report analyzing the impact of the proposed
Initiative Measure, and return to the City for consideration of the Measure within thirty (30) days.

BACKGROUND:

On April 29.2020. proponents of an initiative measure that would amend the City's General Plan to
establish an Urban Growth Boundary (the "Initiative Measure") filed a signed petition containing
817 signatures with the City Clerk's office. In compliance with the Elections Code, the City Clerk
transmitted the signed petition to the Yolo Countv' Registrar of Voters to determine whether the
petition contained a sufficient number of valid signatures. The Registrar of Voters provided a
verification certificate to the City Clerk on May 19. 2020. According to the County's voter
registration records, the City has 3.942 registered voters. In order to qualify for the ballot, the
petition must be signed by 10% of the City's registered voters, or not less than 395 registered voters.
The Registrar of Voters verified 500 signatures, determined that 422 were sufficient. 77 were
insufficient (1 was insufficient due to duplication), and did not verify- the remaining 317 since the
395 signature threshold had already been reached. Theretbre, the Initiative Measure has obtained the
required signatures to qualify for the ballot. The remainder of this report will provide the City
Council with its options under the California Elections Code and requests direction to staff.

95



DtSCUSStON:

1. The Initiative Measure

The proposed Initiative Measure, if adopted- would amend the Cit>- of Winters General Plan
("General Plan") to establish an Urban Growth Boundary ("UGB") with boundaries that are
contiguous with the current City limits. With the exception of an incorporated island of City land to
the northwest of the City (the City's Wastewater Treatment Facility), this Measure changes the land
use designation for lands outside the UGB that were designated as of March 4. 2020 to "Open
Space." Development of lands outside the UGB would be restricted to the following uses:

(1) public parks, public educational facilities (such as public schools and public colleges), and
public wastewater. sewer, storm drain, and water recycling facilities;

(2) agricultural and other open space uses consistent with both (1) the General Plan's "Open
Space" land use designation and (2) the defmition of "open-space lands" in the State
Planning and Zoning law.

If adopted, the Measure provides that it could not be amended or repealed until November 3, 2050
without voter approval unless the proposed change qualities as one ofcertain limited exceptions that
the Winters City Council may approve. These limited exceptions allow the City Council to: make
the UGB smaller; redesignate land uses outside the UGB consistent with the restrictions described
above; amend the UGB where necessary to comply with state or federal housing laws when the City
Council makes specified findings based on substantial evidence; reorganize or renumber General
Plan provisions; and amend the UGB in order to prevent an unconstitutional taking of private
property.

The measure further authorizes and directs the City to amend all ordinances, maps, plans and
policies as soon as possible to be consistent with the measure. The City Council may take such
action after a duly noticed public hearing.

2. Process for Consideration of the Initiative Measure

Since the Initiative Measure has received the required number of signatures, the City Council's
options under the Elections Code section 9215 are as follows:

1. Adopt the Initiative Measure, without alteration, at this regular meeting, or within ten
(10) days after this meeting.

2. Submit the Measure, without alteration, to the voters at the next regular municipal
election occurring at least 88 days later. The next regular municipal election for the
City occurring at least 88 days later is on March 8, 2022.

3. Direct staff to prepare an impartial and informational report analyzing the impact of
the Measure. The report may include any or all of the following:
(1) Its fiscal impact.
(2) Its effect on the internal consistency of the City's general and specific plans.

96



including the housing element, the consistency between planning and zoning,
and the limitations on City actions under Section 65008 of the Government
Code and Chapters 4.2 (commencing with Section 65913) and 4.3
(commencing with Section 65915) of Division 1 ofTitle 7 of the Government
Code.

(3) Its effect on the use of land, the impact on the availability and location of
housing, and the ability of the City to meet its regional housing needs.

(4) Its impact on funding for infrastructure of ail types, including, but not limited
to. transportation, schools, parks, and open space. The report may also
discuss whether the measure would be likely to result in increased
infrastructure costs or savings, including the costs of infrastructure
maintenance, to current residents and businesses.

(5) Its impact on the community's ability to attract and retain business and
employment.

(6) Its impact on the uses of vacant parcels of land.
(7) Its impact on agricultural lands, open space, traffic congestion, existing

business districts, and developed areas designated for revitalization.
(8) Any other matters the City Council requests to be in the report. (Elections

Code, §9212.)

If the Council directs Staff to prepare an impact report. Staff must present the report not later than
thirty (30) days after it is ordered by the City Council. If Council chooses this option, at the time the
report is presented Council will be required to either adopt the Initiative Measure without alteration
within ten (10) days or place the Initiative Measure on the ballot. (Elections Code, § 9215.)

The Elections Code offers the Council the option of calling a special election for consideration of a
ballot measure, rather than considering the ballot measure at the City's next general election.
However, the special election may only be held not less than 88 days nor more than 103 days from
the date the election is called. (Elections Code, § 1405(b).) In this instance, if the City Council
decides to place the Initiative Measure on the ballot, it is required to call the election either at this
meeting, on June 2, 2020, or on the date it receives the impact report, within the 30 days (i.e., no
later than July 2, 2020). (Elections Code § 9211, 9114, 9215.) These are mandatory dates.
However, in order for the City Council to call for an election to be held in conjunction with the
November 3, 2020 presidential election, the City Council would have to call for that election
between July 23.2020 and August 7, 2020. The City Council cannot delay its call for an election on
the Initiative Measure to fall within that window of time and still comply with its obligations for
consideration of local initiative petitions under the Elections Code. Therefore it is not possible to
hold a special election for this Initiative Measure on November 3. 2020 and still comply with the
requirements of the Elections Code.

I informed the Initiative proponent's attorneys of my interpretation of the Election Code as applied
to this issue via email on May 26. and asked them to let me know if they had a different
interpretation of the relevant statutes. I discussed this issue with their attorney on May 27. and he
argued that while my reading of the statutes was technically accurate, the current language resulted
from the adoption of AB 765 in 2017. and the intent of that bill was not to prevent cities from calling
special elections in a situation like this. While that may be the case, when interpreting statutes,
courts have always held that you look first to the plain language of the statute, and only turn to
legislative intent if that language is ambiguous. The language in Elections Code section 1405(b) is

97



not ambiguous at ail—it states that a special election must be held between 88 and 103 days of the
calling of the election. Therefore. I do not think that Elections Code section 1405(b) allows this
election to be held on November 3. 2020. regardless of the Legislature's intent in AB 765. 1 did
invite the proponent's attorney to provide me a letter explaining their position in more detail, and
assured him 1 would provide it to the Council so that you would have the benefit of their
interpretation. As of the writing of this report. 1 have not received that letter, but when and if it
comes. I will pass it along to the Council for consideration.

The Council could, in theory", hold a special election separate and apart from the November
presidential election in September or October 2020. depending on the date that the City orders the
Initiative Measure to be considered at a special election. (Elections Code. § 1003.) However, the
City would have to absorb the full cost of conducting that election, and it would be extremely
confusing to hold a separate one-item election 1 -2 months prior to the presidential election. There is
also the possibility that the County would decline to assist the City in conducting this election since
they will be preparing to conduct the presidential election during that time. As a result, if the City
Council decides to put the Initiative Measure on the ballot. City staff strongly recommends that it be
placed on the March 8, 2022 general municipal election.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Council has the option to (1) adopt the Initiative Measure without alteration within 10 days of
this meeting; (2) direct staff to prepare an impact report as described above and return to the Council
within 30 days, or (3) place the Initiative Measure on the March 8, 2022 ballot.

If the Council desires to adopt the Initiative Measure, we would recommend that the Council
continue this meeting to a date certain within ten days of this meeting, and adopt the measure at that
meeting. That will give City staff sufficient time to prepare the necessary documentation for
adoption. Further, if the Council directs City staff to prepare the impact report. City staff requests
that the Council schedule a special meeting in late June to consider the report. The only regular
Council meeting to be held prior to the thirty day deadline is on June 16.2020. which would not give
City staff sufficient time to prepare an adequate report.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There would be no immediate cost associated w ith adopting the measure, though City staff cannot
determine the potential fiscal impact of the Initiative Measure itself without preparing the impact
report. County election officials have informed the City that the rough cost of placing a measure on
the ballot would be $11,700. though that is only an estimate, and that cost could change between
now and the 2022 election based on a variety of factors.

Attachments: Initiative Measure

Resolution Placing Initiative Measure on the March 8. 2022 Regular Municipal
Election Ballot

98



Initiative Measure to be Submitted Directly to the Voters

The City Attorney has prepared the following title and summary of the chief purpose and points
of the proposed measure, pursuant to California Elections Code section 9203. The title and summary must
be printed across the top of each page of the petition whereon signatures are to appear as required by
California Elections Code section 9203.

BALLOT TITLE:

Initiative Measure Amending the City of Winters General Plan to Establish an Urban Growth
Boundary and, Through November 3 2050, to Prohibit Urban Development Outside of That Boundary,
Subject to Certain Exceptions.

BALLOT SUMMARY

If adopted, the Measure would amend the City of Winters General Plan ("General Plan") to
establish an Urban Growth Boundary ("UGB") with boundaries that are contiguous with the current City
limits. With the exception of an incorporated island of City land to the northwest of the City, this Measure
changes the land use designation for lands outside the UGB that were designated as of March 4, 2020 to
''Open Space." Development of lands outside the UGB would be restricted to the following uses:

(1) public parks, public educational facilities (such as public schools and public colleges), and public
wastewater, sewer, storm drain, and water recycling facilities;

(2) agricultural and other open space uses consistent with both (1) the General Plan's "Open Space"
land use designation and (2) the definition of "open-space lands" in the State Planning and Zoning
law.

If adopted, the Measure provides that it could not be amended or repealed until November 3, 2050
without voter approval unless the proposed change qualifies as one of certain limited exceptions that the
Winters City Council may approve. These limited exceptions allow the City Council to: make the UGB
smaller; redesignate land uses outside the UGB consistent with the restrictions described above; amend
the UGB where necessary to comply with state or federal housing laws when the City Council makes
specified findings based on substantial evidence; reorganize or renumber General Plan provisions; and
amend the UGB in order to prevent an unconstitutional taking of private property.

The measure further authorizes and directs the City to amend all ordinances, maps, plans and
policies as soon as possible to be consistent with the measure. The City Council may take such action
after a duly noticed public hearing.

/s/ Ethan Walsh, City Attorney
March 18, 2020

99



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-28

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WINTERS

CALLING FOR THE HOLDING OF A GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION
ON TUESDAY, MARCH 8, 2022, FOR THE SUBMISSION OF A PROPOSED
MEASURE AMENDING THE CITY OF WINTERS GENERAL PLAN,

REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF YOLO
TO CONSOLIDATE SAID ELECTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 10403 OF
THE CALIFORNIA ELECTIONS CODE AND SETTING RULES FOR

ARGUMENTS AND REBUTTALS FOR AND AGAINST SAID MEASURE

WHEREAS, pursuant to authontv- provided by statute, a petition has been filed with the
Cit\- Council of the City of Winters, signed by more than ten percent (10''o) of the number
of registered voters of the City, to submit to the qualified electors a proposed measure
amending the City of Winters General Plan to establish an L'rban Growth Boundary and.
Through November 3 2050, to prohibit urban development outside of that boundary,
subject to certain exceptions; and

WHEREAS, the City Clerk/Elections Official examined the records of registration and
ascertained that, pursuant to California Elections Code Section 9215, the petition is signed
by the requisite number of voters, and has so certified; and

WHEREIAS, the City Council has not voted in favor of the adoption of the measure; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is therefore authorized and directed by statute to submit the
proposed measure to the voters; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to place the measure on the ballot for the March 8,
2022 General Municipal Election; and

WHEREAS, the City Council also desires to request that the election for this measure be
consolidated with the Statewide Primary Election dso to be held on March 8, 2022; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Elections Code Section 9285 and 9286, the Cit\-
Council further desires to establish rules and regulations for the preparation, submittal and
printing of arguments and rebuttals for and against the measure described herein; and

WHEREAS, the specific terms of the measure/General Plan amendment are attached
hereto as Exhibit "A" and by this reference made an operative part hereof.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the Citv of Winters as
follows:

SECTION I. That pursuant to the requirements of California Elections Code Section
9215 any other applicable requirements of the laws of the State of California relating to
general law cities, there is called and ordered to be held in the Citv of VC'inters on Tuesday,

Page 1

100



March 8, 2018, a General Municipal Election for the purpose of submitting the following
proposed measure/General Plan amendment:

Shall an initiative ordinance amending the Citv of Winters General Plan to
establish an L'rban Growth Boundarv, and through November 3 2050 to
prohibit urban development outside of that boundar\% subject to certain
exceptions, be adopted?

\'es

No

SECTION 2. That the text of the measure submitted to the voters attached hereto as

Exhibit A is hereby submitted to the voters; and

SECTION 3. That pursuant to the requirements of Section 104(03 of the Elections Code,
the Board of Supervisors of the County of Yolo is hereby requested to consent and agree to
the consolidation of said election with the Statewide Primary Election on Tuesday, March 8,
2022;and

SECTION 4. That the Registrar of Voters is authorized to canvass the returns of the
General Municipal Election. The election shaU be held in all respects as if there were only
one election and only one form of ballot shall be used; and

SECTION 5. That the City of Winters recognizes that additional costs will be incurred by
the County by reason of this consolidation and agrees to reimburse the County for any costs;
and

SECTION 6. That the City Clerk is authorized, instructed and directed to coordinate with
the County of Yolo Registrar of Voters to procure and furnish any and all official ballots,
notices, printed matter, and all supplies, equipment and paraphernalia that may be necessary
in order to properly and lawfully conduct the election; and

SECTION 7. That the ballots to be used at the election shall be in form and content as

required by law. Voters shall vote yes or no; and

SECTION 9. That the consolidated election shall be held and conducted in the manner

prescribed in Section 10418 of the Elections Code of the State of California; and

SECTION 10. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this
resolution with the Board of Supervisors and the Registrar of \'oters of the County of Yolo.

SECTION 11. Direct Arguments and Impartial Analysis.

A. Direct Arguments in favor of or against the measure shaU be prepared and
filed with the Cit\- Clerk in accordance with Article 4, Chapter 3, Division 9 of the Elecuons
Code of the State of California and any other applicable provisions of law.

B. Pursuant to Section 9280 of the Elections Code, the Cit\- Council directs the
City Clerk to transmit a copy of the measure to the City Attorney. The Cit\- Attorney shall
prepare an impartial analysis of the measure, not to exceed 500 words in length, showing the

Page 2

101



effect of the measure on the existing law and the operation of the measure. The Cicv
Attorney shall transmit such impartial analysis to the City Clerk, who shall cause the analysis
to be published in the voter information guide along with the ballot measure as provided by
law. The impartial analysis shall be filed bv the deadline set for filing of direct arguments.
The impartial analysis shall include a statement mdicating whether the measure was placed
on the ballot by a petition signed by the requisite number of voters or bv the Cic\" Council.
In the event the entire text of the measure is not printed on the ballot, nor in the voter
information guide of the sample ballot, there shall be printed immediately below the
impartial analysis, in no less than l()-font bold t\pe, the following: "The above statement
is an impartial analysis of Measure . If you desire a copy of the measure, please
call the election official's office at and a copy will be mailed at no
cost to you."

SECTION 12. Rebuttals. Pursuant to Section 9285 of the Elections Code of the State of

California, when the City Clerk has selected the direct arguments for and against the measure
which will be printed and distributed to the voters, the City Clerk shall send copies of the
direct argument in favor of the measure to the authors of the direct argument against, and
copies of the direct argument against to the authors of the direct argument in favor. The
authors or persons designated by them may prepare and submit rebuttal arguments not
exceeding 250 words. Rebuttal arguments shall be printed in the same manner as the direct
arguments. Each rebuttal argument shall immediately follow the direct argument which it
seeks to rebut.

SECTION 13. That in all particulars not recited in this Resolution, the election shall be
held and conducted as provided by law for holding municipal elections in the City.

SECTION 14. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution passed
and adopted by the City Council of the City of Winters at a meeting thereof on the day
of , 2020 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Wade Cowan, Mavor

Attest:

Tracy S. Jensen, City Clerk

Page 3

102



SHUTE, MIHALY
C^-WEINBERCERllp

396 HAYES STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 941 02

T: (415) 552-7272 F: (41 5) 552-581 6

www.smwlaw.com

ROBERT "PERL" PERLMUTTER

Attorney

Perlmucter@smwlaw.com

May 28, 2020

yjq Electronic Mail Only

Ethan Walsh

City Attorney, City of Winters
email: Ethan.Walsh a bbklaw.com

Re: Winters Urban Growth Boundary Initiative

Dear Ethan:

I am writing on behalf of the proponents of the Winters Urban Growth
Boundary (UGB) Initiative. At its June 2nd meeting, the Council will consider next steps
regarding this initiative measure, which seeks to foster economic growth in the City's
downtown and protect agricultural lands outside the UGB. The initiative received
overwhelming number of valid petition signatures despite the COVID pandemic thanks
to dedicated volunteers who seek to make Winters the best town to live, play, work, and
raise families.

The Elections Code provides the City Council with three options for next
steps: {1) adopt the measure outright; (2) place the measure on the ballot; or (3) order a
report on the effects of the measure (9212 report) to be completed within 30 days, after
which the City Council must take one of the first two options. As you know, our clients
support Option I and will urge the Council to adopt the measure outright to ensure that
the growth is focused within city limits.

Under Option 2, the Council has the authority to either: (1) call a special
election to be consolidated with the November 3, 2020, presidential election; or (2) place
the measure on the ballot at the City's "next regular election," which we understand you
interpret the City's Municipal Code to mean the statewide direct primary election in
2022. Critically, the upcoming November 3 election would achieve the greatest voter
tumout, at the lowest possible cost to the City, and with the least possible delay.

103



Ethan Walsh, City Attorney
May 28, 2020
Page 2

Other than adopting the initiative outright, placing the initiative on the
November ballot is also the option that would allow the Council to best respect the will of
the 814 City voters who signed the initiative petition. We and our clients will address this
issue in greater detail in a separate letter to the City Council and at the June 2nd City
Council meeting.

For now, I will simply note that the UGB initiative received more total
signatures than the number of votes that elected Mayor Cowan and two other Council
Members to the City Council in the June 2018 election. Had it not been for the severe
obstacles to signature-gathering imposed by state and local shelter-in-place rules, the
initiative proponents would have easily gathered signatures from a majority of Winters'
voters, which I understand is more votes than any Winters City Council candidate has
ever garnered. In this regard, I also note that our clients were one of only a handful of
initiative proponents in the entire State that managed to qualify an initiative during the
shelter-in-place restrictions. Under our system of government, the Council's legislative
power derives from the City's voters, and we urge the Council to respect that power by
choosing the option that ensures the maximum number of City voters will have the
opportunity to express their will on the important issues addressed by the initiative at the
earliest opportunity.

The remainder of this letter addresses the legal issue of the Council's
authority to place the initiative on the November ballot. In our telephone conversation
yesterday, you indicated your view that the Council did not have that power. We
disagree, and we urge you to reconsider your position.

As we discussed, the Legislature amended the governing provisions of the
Elections Code in 2017 to prevent initiative proponents from forcing cash-strapped cities
to place initiatives on costly "stand-alone" special election dates that were both extremely
expensive—typically at least 10 times or more the cost of placing initiatives on
"established election dates" such as the November ballot—and subject to extremely low
voter turnout. In the preceding years, financially powerful developers had increasingly
been employing this tactic—through the use of paid signature gatherers—in a manner
that many viewed to be anti-democratic. Ian Lovett, "Builders Pierce California's
Environmental Shield with New Weapon: The Ballot, New York Times (6/7/16).

Specifically, Assembly Bill 765 (AB 765) amended the Elections Code to
address this problem and prevent initiative proponents from "forcing" these expensive
"stand-alone" special elections. The repeatedly stated purposes of the bill were to save
cities money and increase voter turnout by instead directing initiatives to be held at an

SHUTE. VMH -\L^

-W ElNBERCERu

104



Ethan Walsh, City Attorney
May 28, 2020
Page 3

already scheduled "established election date." (Senate Floor Analyses, 06/22/17; Senate
Elections and Constitutional Amendments, 6/16/17.).

According to the bill's author:

Under existing law. the proponents of local initiative measures have the
ability to force local governments to hold a special election on their
initiative. These special elections are costly, and frequently result in lower
and less representative voter participation. Earlier this year, the Campbell
City Council was forced to schedule a citywide special election - at an
estimated cost of $570,000 - to vote on a local initiative measure that the

proponents failed to qualify in time for last November's ballot.

Assembly Floor Analysis, 5/17/17 (emphasis added). The bill was supported by Common
Cause, which likewise sought to avoid expensive standalone special elections that could
not be consolidated with other local or state elections.

At the same time, the Legislature made clear that it sought to preserve the
flexibility of city councils to exercise the option of placing initiatives on the ballot at
established election dates for which the initiative had qualified in time, as is the case
here. See Committee on Elections and Redistricting Analysis, 5/10/17.

Unfortunately, AB 765 introduced an ambiguity into the law on this issue
by deleting the provisions of former Elections Code section 1405(a) that had long
expressly authorized city councils to consolidate a special election with any established
election date occurring within the following 6 months.' The legislative history makes
clear that this ambiguity was inadvertently introduced by committee staff who were
trying to preserve—and in fact incentivize the use of—cities' option to consolidate
elections in situations exactly like the situation here.

As introduced. AB 765 authorized local jurisdictions to call a special
election to be held not less than 88 days after the date of the order of the election.

' Specifically, former Elections Code section 1405(a)(1) provided as follows: "(1) When
it is legally possible to hold a special election on an initiative measure that has qualified
pursuant to Section 9116, 9214. or 9310 within 180 days prior to a regular or special
election occurring wholly or partially within the same territory, the election on the
initiative measure may be held on the same date as, and be consolidated with, that
regular or special election^ 5^^ 85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen 151 (2002) (discussing these
requirements).

SHUTE, V!!H \n

C- - ElNBERCERap

105



Ethan Walsh, City Attorney
May 28, 2020
Page 4

(Committee on Elections and Redistricting, 5/10/17.) Committee staff noted that the
original language could result in unreasonably delayed special elections and would
reduce incentives to consolidate elections:

This bill gives local jurisdictions broad flexibility to set the date of the
special election, however, a concern has been raised that it may lessen the
degree to which the law encourages consolidations with regularly
scheduled elections. Furthermore, under existing law, if a local jurisdiction
is required to call a standalone special election to vote on a local initiative
measure, that standalone special election must occur no later than 103 days
after the date of the order of the election, thereby ensuring that the
measure is considered by voters relatively quickly. Under this bill, a local
jurisdiction could call a standalone special election to vote on a local
initiative measure but still delay on holding that election for a significant
period of time.

In order to address these issues, committee staff recommends that this bill

be amended to provide that if a local jurisdiction chooses to call a special
election to vote on a local initiative measure, that election shall be held not
less than 88 nor more than 103 days after the date of the order of the
election. This timeline is generally consistent with the timeline for a
special election to be held for a local initiative measure under existing
law.

Id.

As noted above, and as the Attorney General has explained, an important
feature of existing law at that time was Elections Code section 1405(a)( 1). This section
provided that when this 88 to 103 day window fell within six months before the
November election, the city council could consolidate the special election with the
November election. Thus, the insertion of the 103-day outer limit was intended to allow
for consolidation with the next regularly scheduled election, in this case the November 3,
2020 election.

In eliminating the ability of initiative proponents to force a stand-alone
election (which was the avowed purpose of AB 765). the Legislature also deleted section
1405(a)( I). I understand you believe that the insertion of the 103-day limit in AB 765
effectively means that, if the City Council exercised its option to call a special election in
this case, that election would have to be held sometime between September 28 and

SHUTE MIH \L>

2^ -WEINBERCERlih

106



Ethan Walsh, City Attorney
May 28, 2020
Page 5

October 13, 2020.- The only other option, you have indicated, is for the City Council to
delay voters' consideration of the initiative until the spring for 2022. In our view, such a
reading is contrary to the express legislative intent to preserve cities' ability to
consolidate elections, save costs, and avoid delay.

Moreover, such a reading would lead to absurd results where—as in this
case—the City Council clearly has the option of scheduling a special election on the
initiative just weeks before the established presidential election date. Even where the
legislative intent is not clear, courts have repeatedly held that legislation must be
interpreted to avoid such absurd results. See, e.g., Tuolumne Jobs & Small Business
Alliance v. Superior Court (2014) 59 Cal.4th 1029, 1037 ("Interpretations that lead to
absurd results ... are to be avoided."); id. (avoiding such an absurd result by interpreting
Elections Code section 9212 to authorize city councils to directly adopt a qualified
initiative measure at the earliest possible time and without complying with CEQA).

That directive applies even more clearly here for two reasons. First, local
officials and courts alike have the constitutional duty to interpret and implement the
initiative power in a manner that best effectuates the will of the voters. See, e.g.
Independent Energy Producers Assn. v. McPherson (2006) 38 Cal.4th 1020, 1032
(emphasizing that the Constitution's initiative should be liberally construed to maintain
maximum power in the people and that "[a]ny doubts should be resolved in favor of the
exercise of these rights"); DeVita v. County ofNapa (1995) 9 CaL4th 763, 111 (applying
this rule to uphold an initiative drafted by our firm that is similar to the Winters' UGB).

Second, the legislative history makes clear that the Legislature never
intended to disrupt the Election Code's requirement that special elections could be held
on one of the established election dates or on the date of any statewide special election.
See Election Code Section 1400 ("Each special election shall be held on one of the
established elections dates set by this division ... except as provided in Section 1003.")
(emphasis added); see also Tuolumne Jobs, 59 Cal.4th at 1040 (relying on legislative
history to conclude that "application of CEQA to voter initiatives is contrary to
legislative intent").

Indeed, the central purpose of AB 765 was to direct initiative measures to
be decided without delay at already scheduled "established election dates," where voter
turnout is high. The November presidential election date is not only one of these
"established election dates" {see Elec. Code section 1000(c)), but also the single election
date in each four-year cycle that typically has the highest voter turnout. In short, AB 765

- This is the period coinciding with 88 to 103 days after July 2, 2020.

SHLTE. \IIH MA

- WEINBERGER lu-

107



Ethan Walsh, City Attorney
May 28, 2020
Page 6

did not seek to remove city councils' flexibility in scheduling or consolidating elections
on the established November election dates: it sought to increase and preserve that
flexibility.

We recognize that Elections Code section 1003 has long exempted local
initiative measures from section 1400's express requirement that all special elections
must occur on established election dates. This exemption made sense when, prior to AB
765, former Elections Code 1405 expressly permitted an extension of the 88-103 day
window in order to hold the special election on the same date as, and to be consolidated
with, a statewide general election. But it would be absurd to read the statutory scheme as
amended by AB 765 to prohibit consolidation with statewide general elections where
such consolidation would decrease cost, increase voter turnout, and not unreasonably
delay the special election.

Voters deserve to have their voice heard this November, when voter turnout
will be at its highest. Local residents, faced with mounting development pressures that
would convert agricultural land and detract from small downtown businesses, worked
tirelessly to qualify this measure for the ballot. The Winters UGB Initiative is one of only
a handful of local initiative measures in the entire State of California that qualified for the
ballot during the shelter-in-place restrictions imposed by the COVID pandemic. Winters
residents deserve to have this matter decided this year, at the November 2020 election.

Thank you for your attention to this matter and to your dedicated public
service, especially during this challenging time. Please do not hesitate to contact me if
you have any questions.

Very truly yours,

SHUTE, MIHALY & WEINBERGER LLP

Robert "Perl" Perlmutter

cc: Client

1246582..^

SHUTE, MIH -\n
-V EINBERCERup

108



WIN J tK' Lity or Winters - general Kian Lana use General Plan Adopted 1992

General Plan Land Use Designations

NC Neighborhood Commercial

CBD Central Business District

D-A Downtown A

D-B Downtown B

OF Office

BP Business/Industrial Park

HSC Highway Service Commercial

LI Light Industrial

HI Heavy Industrial

LR Low Density Residential

MR Medium Density Residential

MHR Medium/High Density Residential

HR High Density Residential

RR Rural Residential

PQP Public/Quasi-Public

PR Parks and Recreation

OS Open Space

AG Agriculture

□ City Limits

:  i

ITI HTUT
rnrmT-T^

t

- :

rn

TXI

7L

)r^:

Miles

OAGOBERTO FIERROS • WINTERS GIS - FEBRUARY 2Q20



W1N I i n S ■  l-dl iV^ 11 II LICI LI V ̂  IVIC4p
General Plan Adopted 1992

General Plan Land Use Designations

NC Neighborhood Commercial

?' CBD Central Business District

D-A Downtown A

D-B Downtown B

OF Office

BP Business/Industrial Park

HSC Highway Service Commercial

LI Light Industrial

HI Heavy Industrial

LR Low Density Residential

MR Medium Density Residential

MHR Medium/High Density Residential

HR High Density Residential

RR Rural Residential

PQP Public/Quasi-Public

PR Parks and Recreation

OS Open Space

AG Agriculture

a City Limits

o

M
OS-OPEN SPACE

OS-OPEN SPACE

m-

r
tr

I
«iiurrvriihp?

"■"iLiu i;

ITI

•Ji.-

m

Miles

DAGOBERTO FIERROS • WINTERS GIS - MAY 2020


	Agenda - 6/2/2020 City Council Meeting
	Minutes - 5/19/2020 City Council Meeting
	Appropriation Limit for Fiscal Year 2020-2021
	Public Hearing and Adoption of Reso 2020-26, Approving Annual Levy Report and Ordering Levy and Collection of Assessments for City-Wide Maint Assmt Dist. FY 2020/2021
	Budget Workshop
	Acceptance of Certificate of Sufficiency for the Initiative Petition Amending the City of Winters General Plan to Establish an Urban Growth Boundary and Request for Further Directino from City Council Pursuant to Elections Code 9215

